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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of Consun Pharmaceutical Group Limited
(the “Company”), | am pleased to present the audited
consolidated financial
its subsidiaries (collectively referred as the “Group” or
“Consun”) for the year ended 31 December 2014.

results of the Company and

FIRST FULL YEAR RESULTS AFTER LISTED ON THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED

The Company was listed successfully on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
on 19 December 2013 (the “Listing”). The initial public offering
of shares of the Company received an overwhelming response
in the market. The public offering tranche in Hong Kong was
oversubscribed by 128 times. Apart from providing a driving
force for the development of the Group’s businesses, the Listing
has also enhanced the Group’s brand image and position in
the market and created another intangible asset for expanding
the Group’s sales network. 2014 was the Company'’s first full
financial year after the Listing. Under the leadership of the
Group’s management team and with the joint effort of the Group’s
staff at different levels, Consun achieved remarkable results with
27.8% growth in revenue and 38.1% growth in net profit, as a
return for shareholders’ trust and support.

INDUSTRY AND BUSINESS OVERVIEW

Along with the growth in disposable income of the general
public, the aging of population and the increase in health
awareness, the total pharmaceutical spending in the PRC is
growing continuously. The PRC government has expanded both
the population coverage of and the benefits under the social
medical insurance system, contributing to the growth of the
nation’s medical industry. Other than benefiting from the above
general factors, the market for the Group’s major products, i.e.
oral modern Chinese medicines for kidney disease and medical
contrast medium, also benefited from the increasing awareness
of chronic kidney diseases and increasingly more medical
institutions with advanced medical imaging instruments.
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By exploring the market intensively, the Group has kept a robust
growth trend and a turnover of RMB730,683,000 was recorded
for the year of 2014,
27.8%. Categorized by product lines, sales of kidney medicines
recorded an increase of 30.0% compared with last year. The

representing a year-on-year growth of

Group’s main product,
remains the growth driver of the Group’s sales, maintaining its
leading position among oral modern Chinese medicines for

uremic clearance granules (“UCG"),

kidney diseases. As for medical contrast medium, the year-on-
year growth in 2014 was 25.8%. It firmly commands the leading
position in the domestic medical contrast medium market for
magnetic resonance imaging.

The Group experienced an increase in turnover for 2014, mainly
attributable to the success of UCG and Gadopentetic Acid
Dimeglumine Salt Injection, being two of the Group’s major
products, with the implementation of its marketing guideline
to develop the market segments intensively. Specifically, with
the continuous tutoring activities in the inpatient department,
products were introduced pertinently to all the departments other
than the department of nephrology in various ways. We have
recruited and trained additional academic representatives who
became familiar with the Group’s products in a desirable manner
in order to extend our coverage over hospitals and physicians.
Compared with last year, the Group’s products penetrated
into more hospitals,
also secondary and lower hospitals (community hospitals).
Further, UCG has been included in the National List of Essential

including not only tertiary hospitals but

Medicines rendering better chances for it to be learned and
applied by more patients.

R&D AND INNOVATION

The Group continues to invest in our research and development
(“R&D”) activities and innovation programmes. Our efforts and
progress have been recognised by the science and technology
departments of local governments. We have also been granted
incentives and subsidy from the government for technological
transformation. Among others, our medicine for treating the
irritable bowel syndrome of digestive system, which came out of
the independent research and development of the Group, was
awarded the New Medicine Certificate by China Food and Drug
Administration at the end of 2013, manifesting the capability of
our R&D team. We expect to launch this medicine within 2015
to further extend our product lines.
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We are also looking for opportunities to co-operate with other
institutions with advanced R&D capability to expedite medicine
development. In July 2014, the Group joined with Southern
Medical University to set up Guangdong Province Medicine
Research Engineering Centre for Renal Diseases, which was
approved by Guangdong Provincial Department of Science
and Technology. In August 2014, the Group has entered into
a technology transfer agreement with a medical technology
company in Beijing in respect of lanthanum carbonate to
treat hyperphosphatemia, a complication of chronic kidney
diseases, and the production facilities are being commissioned.
In December 2014, the Group submitted an application to the
relevant Chinese Government authority for the production of
iopamidol injection, a medical contra medium. The preclinical
work for the research of new drugs for diabetic nephropathy has
been basically completed. In February 2015, the Group entered
into an agreement with Hong Kong Baptist University to sponsor
the School of Chinese Medicine of Hong Kong Baptist University
with HK$5,000,000 for the set-up of the “Consun Chinese
Medicines Research Centre for Renal Diseases”, which will be
dedicated to the research and development of preventive and
curative Chinese medicines for renal diseases, setting to bring
about more effective medicines for the renal disease patients.
The set-up of the Consun Chinese Medicines Research Centre
for Renal Diseases is the first step of our co-operation with Hong
Kong Baptist University. The Group will continue to work with
Hong Kong Baptist University to explore further co-operation
opportunities for specific research projects, on the one hand
facilitating the academic development of Chinese medicines,
on the other hand expediting the conversion of research and
development results into commercial products, with the aim of
benefiting the renal disease patients and achieving a win-win
situation for all parties involved.
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OUTLOOK

Riding on the robust growth trend, the Group will continue to
cultivate the market for existing products intensively. Meanwhile,
by increasing our R&D effort, the launch of new medicines will
accelerate in order to amplify the Group’s medicinal products
reserves. Besides, we will seek for merger and acquisition
targets that will complement the Group’s business. We will
continue to stride towards the goal of being the leader in oral
modern Chinese medicines for kidney diseases and medical
contrast medium segments. As always, our ultimate aim is
to provide stable and profitable returns to the Company’s
shareholders while contributing to the society.

APPRECIATION

At last, | would like to take this opportunity to extend my sincere
gratitude to all fellow directors, management and our staff for
their efforts and contribution to our Group’s development. |
would also like to thank all of our shareholders for their trust
and support.

Chairman
AN Yubao
Hong Kong, 25 March 2015
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Financial Highlights
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Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

2014 2013 Change
20144 20134 2d
RMB thousand RMB thousand (%)
Results E ARBT ARBTIT (%)
Turnover 2] 730,683 571,765 27.8%
Profit before taxation 5 B % 264,159 210,462 25.5%
Profit for the year attributable  ZNA TR E(EER
to equity shareholders pitl
of the Company 211,200 152,882 38.1%
Basic and diluted earnings ERERNREEREF
per share (expressed in (AERARETITR)

RMB Yuan per share) 0.20 5.0%

As at 31 December

M12H31H

2014 2013 Change

20144 20134 1L

RMB thousand RMB thousand (%)

Financial Position B AR ARET R ARETTT (%)

Total assets BEE 1,662,941 1,456,945 14.1%

Total equity wEs 1,433,186 1,257,364 14.0%

Net assets per share BRFEE

(expressed in RMB Yuan (LABRARKITIITR)

per share) 1.26 13.5%

Net debt to equity ratio FEIBRERS R EIP 4 SHIE 4
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Turnover

For the year of 2014, the Group’s turnover was RMB730,683,000,
representing an increase of approximately 27.8% as compared
with the RMB571,765,000 for 2013. Categorized by product
lines, sales of kidney medicines recorded an increase of 30.0%
compared with last year; sales of medical contrast medium
recorded an increase of 25.8% compared with last year; sales
of other medicines recorded an increase of 7.2% compared with
last year. The increase in turnover was mainly attributable to the
Group’s efforts to develop the market segments intensively, to
extend our coverage over hospitals and physicians, so as to

increase sales of the Group’s medicines.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

For the year of 2014, the Group’s gross profit was
RMB571,767,000, representing an increase of 26.4% as
compared with the RMB452,234,000 for 2013. The increase in
gross profit was mainly attributable to the increase in sales. For
the year of 2014, the Group’s gross profit margin was 78.3%,
representing a slight decrease of 0.8% as compared with the
79.1% for the last year, which was mainly attributable to the
increases in prices of certain raw materials.

10
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Other Revenue

For the year of 2014, the Group’s other revenue was
RMB37,585,000, which mainly included the government grants
and interest income. Compared with the other revenue of
RMB13,434,000 for 2013, the increase was mainly attributable
to the increase in interest income due to the rise in cash at bank
during the year.

Distribution Costs

For the year of 2014, the Group’s distribution costs was
RMB230,971,000, representing an increase of 29.8% as
compared with the RMB177,926,000 for 2013. The increase
in distribution costs was mainly attributable to the Group’s
dedication in expending the marketing and distribution networks
by recruiting additional marketing staff and increasing marketing
and academic promotion activities, as well as the share-based
payment cost recognized for the fair value of share options
granted to sales employees during the year.

Administrative Expenses

For the year of 2014, the Group’s administrative expenses
was RMB114,126,000, representing an increase of 46.9% as
compared with the RMB77,692,000 for 2013. The increase in
administrative expenses was mainly attributable to the raise
in certain management expenses and professional fees after
the Company was listed, as well as the share-based payment
cost recognized for the fair value of share options granted to
administrative employees during the year.

Finance Costs

For the years of 2014 and 2013, all of the Group’s short-term
loans were interest-free loans granted by local governments
with a view to foster the development of enterprises. Therefore,
no finance costs were incurred by the Group during the years.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEBNWmR DM

Income Tax

For the year of 2014, the Group’s income tax expense was
RMB52,959,000, representing a decrease of 8.0% as compared
with the RMB57,580,000 for 2013. The effective tax rate (income
tax expense divided by profit before taxation) decreased by
7.4% from 27.4% for 2013 to 20.0% for 2014, mainly because
the Group’s subsidiaries in mainland China were not expected
to distribute profits for the fiscal year of 2014 to their respective
offshore holding companies in the foreseeable future, no
withholding tax was provided for in relation to the profits earned
by the Group’s subsidiaries in mainland China after 1 January
2014.

Annual Profit and Earnings Per Share

For the year of 2014, the Group’s annual profit was
RMB211,200,000, representing an increase of 38.1% as
compared with the RMB 152,882,000 for 2013. The earnings per
share (basic and diluted) increased by RMB0.01 from RMBO0.20
for 2013 to RMBO0.21 for 2014.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
Trade Debtors and Bills Receivable

As at 31 December 2014, the balance of trade debtors and bills
receivable was RMB232,144,000, representing an increase of
3.2% as compared with the balance of RMB224,995,000 as at 31
December 2013. Trade receivables turnover days for 2014 were
112.6 days, decreased by 36.5 days from 149.1 days for 2013.
It was mainly attributable to the Group’s effort in requesting
customers to increase the proportion of cash payment and to
reduce bank acceptance tenor.

Inventories

As at 31 December 2014, the balance of inventories was
RMB53,482,000, representing an increase of 9.2% as compared
with the balance of RMB48,966,000 as at 31 December 2013.
Inventory turnover days for 2014 were 116.0 days, increased by
8.5 days from 107.5 days for 2013. It was mainly attributable to
the stock up of raw materials at the end of 2014 to prepare for
the production needs at the beginning of 2015.
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Trade Payables

As at 31 December 2014, the balance of trade payables
was RMB36,416,000, representing an increase of 77.1%
as compared with the balance of RMB20,567,000 as of 31
December 2013. Trade payables turnover days for 2014 were
64.5 days, reduced by 14.6 days from 79.1 days for 2013. It was
mainly attributable to settlement of purchases accelerated in line
with the improvement in the Group’s cash flows.

Cash Flows

For the year of 2014, the Group’s net cash inflow from operating
activities was RMB294,721,000, representing an increase
of 80.1% as compared with the RMB163,610,000 for 2013,
which was mainly attributable to the increase in sales and the
decrease in trade receivables turnover days. For the year of
2014, the Group’s net cash outflow from investing activities
was RMB248,279,000. Compared with the net cash inflow of
RMB16,278,000 for 2013, the change was mainly attributable
to the acquisition of wealth management products maturing
within 95 days of RMB250,900,000 during the fourth quarter of
2014. For the year of 2014, the Group’s net cash outflow from
financing activities was RMB104,799,000. Compared with the net
cash inflow of RMB640,383,000 for 2013, the change was mainly
attributable to the significant cash inflow from the initial public
offering of shares in 2013 and there was no such item in 2014.

Cash and Bank Balances and Borrowings

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s cash and bank balances
were RMB843,669,000, representing a decrease of 6.5%
as compared with the RMB902,026,000 as at 31 December
2013, which was mainly attributable to the acquisition of
wealth management products maturing within 95 days of
RMB250,900,000 during the fourth quarter of 2014. The Group
did not have any borrowings as at 31 December 2014 (31
December 2013: Nil).
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE
OFFERING OF SHARES

INITIAL PUBLIC

The net proceeds from the initial public offering of shares on
the Stock Exchange on 19 December 2013 (after deducting
the listing expenses of approximately RMB78,263,000) were
approximately RMB774,662,000.

During 2014, the Group used the net proceeds according
to the manner as disclosed in the Listing Prospectus (the
“Prospectus”):

Intended use

BRARBRAESREARR

AR FR2013F 128198 EB X T X A8
RS HREFZFE (KR ETMERANARE
78,263,0007T018 ) #1AANRET774,662,0007T °

R2014FE - AEERBETRKOBERER
(MBRER]) NAERENEREERZEME
RBFEE - FBWT

Intended use Balance as at

of proceeds of proceeds Utilised 31 December
percentage amount amount 2014
STEIFTBRRIE  FHEIFERUA 2E8A R2014%F
Intended use of proceeds HEIfIEFEHE HBABRZAIL AEZ&HE Z&% 12A31B&%E
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT ARETTT AREFTT
1 for infrastructure 1 ARERREIRE
investment 40% 309,865 20,972 288,893
2 for research and 2 ARWEES
development activities 20% 154,933 24,691 130,242
3 for expansion of 3 ARBERTISHE
marketing and K5 $H AR
distribution networks 15% 116,199 53,045 63,154
4 for merger and 4 FARPHEE
acquisition 15% 116,199 - 116,199
5 for working capital and 5 FAR&EBEESNAE
other general th—M RS
corporate purposes 10% 77,466 77,466 -
100% 774,662 176,174 598,488

As 31 December 2014, the balance of proceeds was placed
with recognised financial institutions as short-term deposits to
earn interest income. As of the date of this report, the Directors
are not aware of material change to the intended use of the
proceeds as stated in the Prospectus.
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TREASURY POLICIES

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management
approach towards its treasury policies and thus maintained a
healthy liquidity position throughout the year of 2014. The Group
strives to reduce exposure to credit risk by performing ongoing
credit assessments and evaluations of the financial status of its
customers. To manage liquidity risk, the Board closely monitors
the Group’s liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity structure
of the Group’s assets, liabilities and other commitments can
meet its funding requirements from time to time. Cash and cash
equivalents of the Group are mainly denominated in RMB and
HK$.

GEARING RATIO

The gearing ratio (total interest bearing borrowings over
shareholders’ equity) of the Group as at 31 December 2014
was 0% (31 December 2013: 0%).

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group’s transactions are mainly denominated in RMB and
HKS$. The majority of assets and liabilities are denominated in
RMB and HK$, and there are no significant assets and liabilities
denominated in other currencies. The Group is subject to foreign
exchange rate risk arising from future commercial transactions
and recognised assets and liabilities which are denominated
in a currency other than HK$ or RMB, which are the functional
currencies of the major operating companies now comprising
the Group. During the year, the Group did not commit to any
financial instruments to hedge its exposure to foreign currency
risk.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

For the year of 2014, there was no change in the Company’s
capital structure. The Company’s capital comprises ordinary
shares and other reserves.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had capital commitments
of approximately RMB9,051,000 (31 2013:
RMB5,983,000).

December
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEBNWmR DM

INFORMATION ON EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2014, the Group hired a total of 1,193
employees (31 December 2013: 1,149). The total staff costs
(including the directors’ remuneration) for the year ended 31
December 2014 was RMB175,115,000 (2013: RMB101,399,000).
The salaries of the employees were determined with reference
to individual performance, work experience, qualification and
current industry practices.

On top of basic salaries, bonuses may be paid by reference to
the Group’s performance as well as individual’s performance.
Other staff benefits include contributions to Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefits scheme in Hong Kong and the provision
of pension funds, medical insurance, unemployment insurance
and other relevant insurance for employees who are employed
by our Group pursuant to the PRC rules and regulations and
the prevailing regulatory requirements of the PRC. The salaries
and benefits of the Group’s employees are kept at a competitive
level and employees are rewarded on a performance-related
basis within the general framework of the Group’s salary and
bonus system, which is reviewed annually. The Group also
operates a share option scheme adopted by the Company on
2 December 2013 (“Share Option Scheme”) and a share award
scheme adopted on 21 July 2014 (“Share Award Scheme”),
where options to subscribe for shares and share awards may be
granted to the Directors and employees of the Group.

Details of the Share Option Scheme and Share Award Scheme
are disclosed in the sub-sections headed “Share Option
Scheme” and “Share Award Scheme” under section headed
“Report of Directors” on pages 49 to 55 of this annual report.

The Group made considerable efforts in continuing education
and training programs for its staff, to continuously enhance their
knowledge, skills and cooperation spirit. The Group regularly
provided internal and external training courses for relevant staff
according to their needs.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

Except for investments in subsidiaries, during the year ended
31 December 2014, the Group did not hold any significant
investment in equity interest in any other company.
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FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS AND
CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in the Company’s Prospectus, the Group did
not have other plans for material investments and capital assets.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group did not
have any material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and
affiliated companies.

INVESTMENTS IN WEALTH MANAGEMENT PRODUCTS

As disclosed in note 12(ii) to the financial statements, the Group
held investment in certain wealth management products with
principal amount of RMB250,900,000 as at 31 December 2014
(31 December 2013: Nil). For details, please refer to note 12(ii)
to the financial statements and the Company’s announcement
dated 10 April 2015.

The subscription of each of the wealth management products
is of principal-preservation in nature with certain temporarily
idle internal funds of the Company, and was conducted on the
premises that such investments would not affect the working
capital of the Company or the operation of the Company’s
principal business. The Board considers that the investment
is conductive to improving the capital usage efficiency and
generating investment return from the Company’s temporarily
idle internal funds.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2014, the Group did not have any pledged
assets (31 December 2013: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2014, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities (31 December 2013: Nil).
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EENEREEANEBEE

DIRECTORS

The Board is fully responsible for management and operations.
The following table sets forth information regarding our Directors

as at the reporting date.

B=

EERENEREER
ZENERAREBHNER

RERT - TRINEE

Name Appointment Date Age
#® & ZEAH Fir
Executive Director
HTES
Mr. AN Yubao (Chairman) 24 January 2011
THERE (£/E) 2011461 /24R 72
Ms. LI Qian (Chief Executive Officer) 24 December 2012
RIGUL (7T ) 20129 12A24H 50
Professor ZHU Quan 24 December 2012
REHIE 20126127248 75
Non-executive Director
FHITES
Mr. WANG Shunlong 24 December 2012
TIERESR & 2012412 A24H 51
Mr. YOUNG Wai Po 24 December 2012
BEREE 2012412 A 24H

(Resigned, effective from 28 May 2014)

(B BT - 201455828 £ ) 72
Mr. WANG Zi Han 24 December 2012
TEHEE 2012912 A24H

(Resigned, effective from 28 March 2014)

(BBHT - R2014F3A28HE%) 61
Independent Non-executive Director
BYFHTES
Mr. SU Yuanfu 2 December 2013
iR E L 2013%F12A2H 69
Mr. FENG Zhongshi 2 December 2013
ISR E St 2013F12H2H 56
Ms. CHENG Xinxin 2 December 2013
BRIRIR & £ 2013F12A2H 62
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Directors and Senior Management Profile

CHAIRMAN AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. AN Yubao (Z#BE), aged 72, is our chairman and an
executive Director and a Controlling Shareholder. He was
appointed as our Director with effect from 24 January 2011.
He is also the chairman of Guangzhou Consun Pharmaceutical
Company Limited (“GZ Consun”), Consun Pharmaceutical (Inner
Mongolia) Company Limited (“Consun (Inner Mongolia)”) and
Inner Mongolia Kangyuan Pharmaceutical Company Limited
("Kangyuan”) and a director and the legal representative of
Guangzhou Consun Pharmaceutical Research Company Limited
(“Consun Research”). Mr. AN is primarily responsible for the
overall management, operations, investment and the charting
and reviewing of corporate directions and strategies of our
Group.

Mr. AN has over 10 years of experience in medical education
and approximately 19 years of experience in the business of the
pharmaceutical industry. He has served various key positions,
such as executive director, chairman and legal representative of
GZ Consun since its establishment. Mr. AN served as the vice
chairman of BREAZFHEEHEE 240 (Guangdong Southern
Lee Kum Kee Commercial Information Centre) from November
1995 to February 1999. From July 1996 to December 1998,
Mr. AN started his career in the pharmaceutical industry by
serving as the chairman and legal representative of ERME
HFERIEEERERBRAT (Guangdong Southern Lee Kum
Kee Nutrition Health Products Co., Ltd.) and representing
B ARMBMES —FEEKE (the First Military Medical University
of the People’s Liberation Army of the PRC) as one of its
shareholders. Mr. AN served as the minister and vice president
respectively of HERAE (RPHARBHREF —EBKRE)
(Southern Medical University) (formerly known as the First
Military Medical University of the People’s Liberation Army of the
PRC)) from November 1991 to August 2001 and served as the
vice president of FEIARBNE HAmEEEEE (Jinan Military
General Hospital) from 1987 to 1988. Between 1981 and 1987,
Mr. AN worked at various units of the PRC People’s Liberation
Army and was mainly responsible for hygiene and hospital
management.

EENEREEANEBEBE
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EENEREEANEBEE

Mr. AN graduated from I ARBEKEEZEZM (the Logistics
College of the People’s Liberation Army of the PRC) in 1981
and majored in commanding. Mr. AN also obtained a master’s
degree in business administration from Asia International Open
University (Macau) (now known as City University of Macau) in
November 2007.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. LI Qian (3f5), aged 50, is our executive Director and
chief executive officer and a Controlling Shareholder. She was
appointed as our Director with effect from 24 December 2012.
Ms. LI joined our Group in April 1998 as the associate director of
general manager’s office of GZ Consun. Ms. LI has also served
as a director and the general manager (which was redesignated
as president in May 2008) of GZ Consun since November 1999,
a director of Guangzhou Consun Medicine Company Limited
since November 2003, a director of Consun (Inner Mongolia)
since December 2005, a director of Kangyuan since October
2009, and a director of Brilliant Reach Group Limited, Immense
Value Holdings Limited, Century International Develop Limited
and Grand Reach Company Limited since September 2014. Ms.
LI is primarily responsible for formulating and implementing the
corporate strategies, overseeing production activities, business
development, research and administrative management of our
Group.

Ms. LI has over 8 years of experience in medical education
and 17 years of experience in the business of pharmaceutical
industry. Prior to joining our Group, Ms. LI worked at Southern
Medical University, formerly known as the First Military Medical
University of the People’s Liberation Army of the PRC between
October 1989 and April 1998.
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Ms. LI obtained a master’s degree in business administration at
Asia International Open University (Macau) (now known as City
University of Macau) in November 2007. Ms. LI was granted
the award of EEFEREDEXK (Excellent Private Entrepreneur)
by Tongliao City People’'s Government of the PRC in July
2008, was recognised as Model Worker (4E)18%) by Inner
Mongolia People’s Government of the PRC in April 2010 and was
recognised as EHR & B EITEE R P ER (Famous Entrepreneur
in Pharmaceutical Industry of Guangdong Province) by E&E%&
B #2773 & (Guangdong Province Pharmaceutical Industry
Association) in December 2011. She has been appointed as a
member of E—EFELZEMBPpEBEELRMIEFILERZES
(First Expert Committee for Kidney Disease and Blood Purify
of China Medical Women’s Association) since March 2012.
Ms. LI is also a local registered pharmacist of Guangdong
province (J& 8 & B 5 %0f) recognised by BRE B MEREEE
25 (Guangdong Province Food and Drug Administration). Ms.
Li has been elected as the 2014 Pharmaceutical Brand Woman
in April 2014,

Professor ZHU Quan (5k%), aged 75, is our executive Director.
He was appointed as our Director with effect from 24 December
2012. Professor ZHU is also a director and the chief scientist of
GZ Consun, a director of Kangyuan and the general manager
of Consun Research. Professor ZHU joined our Group in August
2006 as the chief scientist of GZ Consun. Professor ZHU is
primarily responsible for the product research and development
of our Group.

Professor ZHU has over 30 years of experience in teaching and
research at medical school and 8 years of experience in the
business of pharmaceutical industry. Professor ZHU has served
as professor and Ph.D. candidate supervisor at JBPFIRI A £
(Macau University of Science and Technology) since September
2003. He served various positions, such as a deputy director
of medicine department, a director of BIRR&(Lh EHEIRE
¥ = (National Standardization Laboratory for Chinese Herbal
Pharmacology), a Ph.D. candidate supervisor at F R 1 BB K £
(Nanjing University of Chinese Medicine) between October 1981
and November 2005. Professor ZHU also served as an expert for
BXRARE ARIERiTZ 8 € (Science & Technology Commission of
Ministry of Education), an assessment expert for BIZR B AR & E
TEmRIEEEE (the Life Science Department of National Natural
Science Foundation) and a drug evaluation expert in Jiangsu
Province and in the PRC.

Professor ZHU graduated from FREREZfT (China Academy of
Traditional Chinese Medicine) (now known as FF Brh &R} R
(China Academy of Chinese Medical Sciences)) in November
1981 with a master’s degree in pharmacology of traditional
Chinese medicine.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. WANG Shunlong (EJE#), aged 51, is our non-executive
Director who joined our Group in June 2008. He was appointed
as our Director with effect from 24 December 2012. Mr. WANG is
also a director of our subsidiaries, GZ Consun, and Kangyuan.

Mr. WANG has over 18 years of experience in finance, investment
and enterprise management. Mr. WANG currently serves as an
executive director of AZEEBE B AR (CSPC Pharmaceutical
Group Limited) which is mainly engaged in pharmaceutical
product development, production and sale and listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 1093). Mr. WANG joined Hony
Capital Limited in January 2005 as a director and was promoted
to managing director in December 2007. Mr. WANG graduated
from j& % K (Tsinghua University) in July 1985 with a bachelor’s
degree in engineering and subsequently in April 1991 with a
doctorate degree in engineering.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. SU Yuanfu (8 7tf8), aged 69, is our independent non-
executive Director. He joined our Group on 2 December 2013
when he was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director.

Mr. SU graduated from B A REEINE E N E ZE KE (the Fourth
Military Medical University of the People’s Liberation Army of
the PRC) in December 1969 and obtained a master’'s degree in
radiopathology at the same university in December 1982. Mr. SU
served various positions at the People’s Liberation Army of the
PRC. From January 1970 to August 1979, he served as a doctor
at A EEAER (General Hospital of Tibet Military Region).
Between January 1984 and November 1995, Mr. SU served
as the director of science and research office, the dean of
academic affairs, the deputy superintendent and superintendent
of the first affiliated hospital respectively at the Fourth Military
Medical University of the People’s Liberation Army of the PRC.
From November 1995 to June 1998, he served as the director
general of BB I FAEZLEFIB (Technology Training Bureau of
the Department of Health of the General Logistics Department).
Between June 1998 and June 2004, Mr. SU served as the
director of the department of medical administration and the
deputy superintendent respectively at BRI E 4RZEFT (the General
Hospital of the People’s Liberation Army). Mr. SU has been a
standing director of R EIZ P 17 & (Chinese Hospital Association)
since October 2004.
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Mr. FENG Zhongshi (&), aged 56, is our independent
non-executive Director. He joined our Group on 2 December
2013 when he was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director.

Mr. FENG is a lawyer qualified in the PRC. He is currently a
partner of dtRmm RERMEXAT (Beijing Gao Jie Law Firm).
He graduated from FEIEUEARE (China University of Political
Science and Law) in July 1986 with a bachelor's degree in
law. From July 1986 to January 1993, Mr. FENG worked at &
S HBARAAEE (the Department of Justice of Inner Mongolia
Autonomous Region). He served as a lawyer at A5 & & E 26D
EHFT (Inner Mongolia Jingji Law Office) (now known as & &7
B S FT (Jingshi Law Office)) from 1993 to 1995. Between 1996
and 2002, Mr. FENG served as a partner at W5 &5 Z 22 AME
Ffr (Inner Mongolia Huicong Law Office). From 1996 to 2003, he
also served as the head of legal department of It REEEFK &
SMERBARAR (Beijing Hui Cong International Information Co.,
Ltd.). Between 2002 and 2009, Mr. FENG served as a lawyer of
b mi P IREMESA (Beijing Zhong Rui Law Firm). Between
June 2011 and January 2013, he served as a partner of 1t X
S E)VERIESAT (Beijing Jin Li Law Firm).

Ms. CHENG Xinxin (X fiXfiX), aged 62, is our independent non-
executive Director. She joined our Group on 2 December 2013
when she was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director.

Ms. CHENG is a senior accountant recognised by EER%A A
£E (Guangdong Province Human Resource Department).
She has been a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants since October 1994, a registered financial
planner since September 2002, a fellow of the Institute of Public
Accountants of Australia since December 2004 and a member of
the Association of Certified Business Administrators of the United
Kingdom since March 2005. Ms. CHENG graduated form Z2f K
& (Jinan University) majoring in trade economy in July 1985. Ms.
CHENG obtained a master’s degree in business administration
from Murdoch University in March 2000 and obtained a doctor
of philosophy degree in management by distance learning from
a joint degree programme with European University of Ireland,
University of International Business and Economics and Institute
of Cost and Executive Accountants in March 2005.
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Ms. CHENG has been a director of EEJtEEREEER A7 (Kang
Yuan International Consultant Limited) since November 2000,
a director and president of E/MEF ERER AR AFE (Allwell
Company Limited) since February 2002, a director of fH{RK 4L
42 B2 F (Chang Cheng Insurance Brokers Limited) since June
2003, the chairman of BN M FE KT XL BB FFIF 0 (Pearl
River Training Centre) since October 2003, a director of E /&
EHE(Z BRI AR A7 (Guangzhou Saibao Lianrui Information
Technology Company Limited) since November 2003 and had
been the principal partner of B M E IS 5HEIE AT (Guangzhou
Xingtai Accounting Firm) from March 2005 to June 2014 and has
been a salaried partner of IZEE5HEIEHET (Ruihua Certified
Public Accountants) since July 2014. From November 1994 to
January 2001, Ms. CHENG successively served as a deputy
general manager in the department of enterprise management,
financial department and department of strategic development
of ZEBEFHESLBE QR (Yuehai Enterprise Group Company).
She served as a deputy general manager of HERERBRKEHR
fR A7) (Flying Dragon International Investment Limited) between
April 1993 and November 1994. Ms. CHENG served various
positions, such as deputy section chief, section chief and deputy
director of EHR A B EE (Department of Finance of Guangdong
Province) from July 1975 to April 1993. From May 2002 to May
2008, Ms. CHENG served as an independent director of ERE
NERERMHER AR (Guangdong Electric Power Development
Co. Ltd.), a company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock
code: 000539).

Save as disclosed, each of our Directors has not been a director
of any other publicly listed company during the past three years.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. TANG Ning (BZ), aged 49, is a vice president of GZ
Consun. Mr. TANG joined our Group in July 1998 as a business
manager. Between July 1998 and June 2011, Mr. TANG served
various positions at GZ Consun, such as business manager,
regional marketing manager, marketing director, and president
assistant. He has been the vice president of GZ Consun since
June 2011. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. TANG worked at Z& 7|
Z A4 T (Cili Baifang General Company Limited) between
October 1987 and June 1998. Mr. TANG graduated from JFd
2T (Hunan University of Commerce) in June 1986 majoring
in marketing.
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Mr. ZHOU Shangwen ([ X), aged 45, is a vice president
of GZ Consun. Mr. ZHOU joined our Group in April 2004 as a
marketing manager for Guangdong province. Between April
2004 and June 2013, Mr. ZHOU served various positions at GZ
Consun, such as regional marketing manager, marketing director
for our kidney drugs and president assistant. He has been the
vice president of GZ Consun since July 20183. Prior to joining
our Group, Mr. ZHOU worked at E/NTHASTIEBT (Guangzhou
Brain Hospital) between July 1995 and March 1997. Between
August 1997 and April 2004, Mr. ZHOU successively worked at
M #E T (R 2)RIBE G R A | (Servier (Tianjin) Pharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd.). Mr. ZHOU graduated from it RERI K2 (Beijing Medical
University) (now known as 3L AKEBEEZE0 (Peking University
Health Science Center)) in July 1995 with a bachelor’s degree
in mental health.

Ms. FANG Lanfen (5 #25), aged 52, is a vice president of GZ
Consun. Ms. FANG joined our Group in July 1999 as a business
manager. Between July 1999 to July 2013, Ms. FANG served
various positions at GZ Consun, such as business manager,
regional marketing manager and marketing director. She has
been the vice president of GZ Consun since July 2013. Prior
to joining our Group, Ms. FANG worked at E$88 2207 (Guzhen
County Hospital) between July 1985 and September 1989, and
at ZHEAEA/KF|EER (Water Resource Department of Anhui
Province Hospital) between September 1989 and July 1999. Ms.
FANG graduated from 38 E 27 (Bengbu Medical College) with
a bachelor’s degree in medical in July 1985.

Mr. FANG Peicheng (7 #%3), aged 36, is the audit and legal
director and president assistant of GZ Consun. Mr. FANG joined
our Group in August 2010 as an audit manager. He has been
the audit and legal director since January 2013 and president
assistant of GZ Consun since January 2015. Prior to joining our
Group, Mr. FANG worked as audit supervisor at Fafe{t TR 5B
fR A 7R] (Xilong Chemical Company Limited) between May 2008
and July 2010.
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Mr. FANG graduated from FAZET #2687 (Nan Hua College of
Industry and Commerce) major in computer accounting in July
2002, and graduated from R EI AR ANB(ER)EFE2EE (China
University of Petroleum (Eastern China) Accounting Profession)
with a bachelor's degree in management. Mr. FANG has the
Audit Professional Qualification (Intermediate) granted by A&
ANERFt2RESS (Ministry of Human Resources and Social
Securities of the People’s Republic of China). He is also a
member of The Institute of Internal Auditors.

Mr. YAO Bihua (Zk2#), aged 51, is the chief engineer of
GZ Consun and concurrently serving as general manager of
Kangyan and Consun (Inner Mongolia). Mr. YAO is primarily
responsible for production management of our Group. Since
Mr. YAO joined our Group in April 2007, he has served various
positions, such as deputy general manager of GZ Consun
and production director of our Group. Prior to joining our
Group, Mr. YAO successively served as workshop director,
engineer and chief engineer in EHE&%E—E (Yueyang First
Pharmaceutical Factory) (now known as &5/ 1 fE 1 22 2 S @)
fR 2 7] (Yueyang Zhongxiang Kangshen Pharmaceutical Group
Company Limited)) between July 1986 and February 2004.
From February 2004 to June 2005, he served as the production
and technology director of MR R EEAFR A F] (Hunan Jinjin
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.). From September 2005 to April 2007,
Mr. YAO served as the production and technology director
and executive general manager respectively at i fimED
B AR AR (Hunan Herui Biotechnology Company Limited).
Between June 2006 and April 2007, he concurrently served as
the vice president for production and technology at #m @2k 4E
YIE LB AR AR (Hunan Derui Bio-industry Group Company
Limited). Mr. YAO graduated from j#7 fF 2 E3 (Hunan Institute
of Chinese Medicine) in July 1986 with a bachelor’s degree in
Chinese medicine. He is also a senior engineer (& T2EM)
recognised by j#E& A EEE (Hunan Province Human Resource
Department) and a licenced pharmacist ($1% %4ff) in the PRC.
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Ms. CHEN Yujun (BR £ %), aged 35, is the Group’s chief financial
officer. Ms. CHEN joined the Group in May 2013 as deputy
finance director. She has been the chief financial officer of the
Group since April 2014. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. CHEN
worked with an international accounting firm between July
2005 and May 2012, and became an audit manager since July
2010. Ms. CHEN graduated from ERIMNEINE KE (Guangdong
University of Foreign Studies) English (International Business
Management) Profession and Accounting Profession in 2005,
with a bachelor’s degree in arts and a bachelor's degree in
management. She has been a member of the Chinese Institute
of Certified Public Accountants since January 2010.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. YAU Chi Ming (E&8), aged 48, has been our company
secretary since he joined our Group in March 2013. Mr. YAU
is responsible for our company secretarial matters and he has
over 20 years of experience in finance and accounting. Mr.
YAU is a certified public accountant (Practising) and is a fellow
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He
is also acting as independent non-executive director of two
companies listed on the Stock Exchange, including Cosmo
Lady (China) Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 2298) and
Common Splendor International Health Industry Group Limited
(stock code: 286). Prior to joining our Group, he worked at an
international audit firm from August 1992 to November 1994 and
from May 1995 to October 2012, during which he was promoted
to partner in July 2007. Mr. YAU graduated from The University
of Hong Kong in December 1992 with a bachelor’s degree in
social sciences.
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Mr. GAO Haien (S8 2), aged 46, has been appointed as the
joint company secretary of the Company for a term of three years
with effect from 15 April 2014. Mr. GAQO is our Board secretary
and the board secretary of GZ Consun. Mr. GAO joined our
Group in August 2007 as the board secretary of GZ Consun.
Mr. GAO has been the legal representative of GZ Consun,
Consun (Inner Mongolia) and Kangyuan since March 2013.
Prior to joining our Group, Mr. GAO successively served as a
general manager of the accessories store and the assistant to
headquarters general manager of FIIT#as T AEHEHEAR
‘A A] (Shenzhen Sunyes Tools Co. Ltd.) from January 2006 to
August 2007. Between July 1995 and January 2006, Mr. GAO
successively served as a senior engineer of & & E T3 &M (IDT
Data System Factory) and a technology manager of &3 &
EHBIERHE AR AT (Shenzhen Aomeidi Digital Technology
Co. Ltd.).

Mr. GAO graduated from FEMEZEAKZ (China University of
Mining and Technology) in July 1992 with a bachelor’s degree
in engineering and subsequently obtained a bachelor’s degree
in economics at the same university in January 1994. He
obtained a master’s degree in business administration at &
R EAEBUEKRE (Zhongnan University of Economics and Law)
in June 2012. Mr. GAO holds BHEEEKFERINEES(ZH)
(Professional Certificate in Securities (Band 11)) granted by A
BEEWE (Securities Association of China) and EEEMWMEE
%7 2& (Board Secretary Certificate) granted by the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange. He is also a member of Hong Kong Securities
and Investment Institute.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Adapting and adhering to recognised standards of corporate
governance principles and practices has always been one
of the top priorities of the Company. The Board believes that
good corporate governance is one of the areas that lead to
the success of the Company and in balancing the interests
of shareholders, customers and employees, and the Board
is devoted to ongoing enhancements of the efficiency and
effectiveness of such principles and practices.

The Company has adopted and complied with the code
provisions (the “Code Provisions”) set out in Appendix 14
“Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report” to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) during the year ended 31
December 2014.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
THE DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. The Company
confirms that, having made specific enquiry of all Directors,
all the Directors have compiled with the required standards of
dealing as set out in the Model Code during the year ended 31
December 2014.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board currently comprises 7
Directors, of which three are executive Directors, one is non-
executive Director and three are independent non-executive
Directors. The composition of the Board during 2014 and up to
the date of this report is as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. AN Yubao (Chairman)

Ms. LI Qian (Chief Executive Officer)
Professor ZHU Quan

Non-executive Directors

Mr. WANG Shunlong

Mr. YOUNG Wai Po, Peter (Resigned, effective from 28 May 2014)
Mr. WANG Zi Han (Resigned, effective from 28 March 2014)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. SU Yuanfu

Mr. FENG Zhongshi

Ms. CHENG Xinxin

Biographical details of current Directors are set out in the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management Profile” on pages
18 to 28.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

During the year of 2014, there were three independent non-
executive Directors representing one third or more of the Board,
and one of them, Ms. CHENG Xinxin has accounting professional
qualifications. Each of the independent non-executive Directors
has made an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that
all independent non-executive Directors meet the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and thus are
independent in accordance with the terms of the guidelines.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD AND MANAGEMENT

The Board is primarily responsible for overseeing and managing
the Company’s affairs, including the responsibilities for the
adoption of long-term strategies and appointing and supervising
senior management to ensure that the operation of the Group
is conducted in accordance with the objective of the Group.
The Board is also responsible for determining the Company’s
corporate governance policies which include: (i) development
and review of the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance; (ii) review and monitoring of the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management; (iii) review and monitoring of the code of conduct
and compliance manual applicable to employees and Directors;
and (iv) review of the Company’s disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report.

While at all times the Board retains full responsibility for guiding
and monitoring the Company in discharging its duties, certain
responsibilities are delegated to various Board committees
which have been established by the Board to deal with different
aspects of the Company’s affairs. Unless otherwise specified
in their respective written terms of reference as approved
by the Board, these Board committees are governed by the
Company’s articles of association (“Articles of Association”)
as well as the Board’s policies and practices (in so far as the
same are not in conflict with the provisions contained in the
Articles of Association). With the new composition of members
of the nomination committee, remuneration committee and audit
committee, the independent non-executive Directors will be able
to effectively devote their time to perform the duties required by
the respective Board committees.
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The Board has also delegated the responsibility of implementing
its strategies and the day-to-day operation to the management
of the Company under the leadership of the executive Directors.
Clear guidance has been made as to the matters that should
be reserved to the Board for its decision which include matters
on, inter alia, capital, finance and financial reporting, internal
controls, communication with shareholders, Board membership,
delegation of authority and corporate governance.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the preparation
of the financial statements which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group. The financial statements set out
on pages 66 to 147 were prepared on the basis set out in note
1(b) to the financial statements. Financial results of the Group
are announced in a timely manner in accordance with statutory
and/or regulatory requirements. The declaration of reporting
responsibility issued by the external auditor of the Company on
the Company’s financial statements is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 64 to 65.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board is scheduled to meet regularly at least four times a year
(does not include obtaining Board consent through circulating
written resolutions) at approximately quarterly intervals, to
discuss the overall strategy as well as the operational and
financial performance of the Company. Other Board meetings
will be held when necessary. Such Board meetings involve the
active participation, either in person or through other electronic
means of communication, of a majority of Directors. During the
year of 2014, the Board held 4 meetings.
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GENERAL MEETINGS BRERE

An annual general meeting and an extraordinary general meeting 72014958280 * A AR BT T RERAF ARG
were held by the Company on 28 May 2014. Details of Directors’ MR ERIAE » SEEHFESHNAHEH I M

attendance are as follows: ™
No. of No. of
attendance/ attendance/
No. of board No. of general
meetings meetings
HERE HERE
Director 2= EEEEERY BRAERE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. AN Yubao (Chairman) TEELE (£EF) 4/4 2/2
Ms. LI Qian (Chief Executive Officer) 25+ (77 42%t) 4/4 2/2
Professor ZHU Quan REHE 4/4 2/2
Non-Executive Directors FHITES
Mr. WANG Shunlong FIERE S A 4/4 2/2
Mr. YOUNG Wai Po, Peter CEY it
(Resigned, effective from (B BT - R20144F5H28H4£5%)
28 May 2014) 1/1 0/0
Mr. WANG Zi Han TEBEE
(Resigned, effective from (B BT - R20144F3H28H4£5%)
28 March 2014) 11 0/0
Independent Non-Executive BYFHTES
Directors
Mr. SU Yuanfu BTk E 4/4 2/2
Mr. FENG Zhongshi M E L 4/4 2/2
Ms. CHENG Xinxin FRIRRAZ £+ 4/4 2/2

At least 14 days’ notices are given to all Directors in advance for TP R14RHBALEEEHRERNEME R
attending regular and other Board meetings. Meeting agendas RIIEAIEX TEE S - @RAENEMARER
and other relevant information are provided to the Directors HEEEFEGHRAMZIIRZAETES -
at least 3 days before the date of the Board meetings. All FIBEEHHAAVIRESTSSHBZRINAN
Directors are consulted to include additional matters in the INEIE - RAIESATWMENERAMRE - #BIR
agenda for Board meetings and have access to the advice and ~EF G127 LT EARAI LR OIHESESF -
services of the company secretary with a view to ensuring that

Board procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations, are

followed.
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Both draft and final versions of the minutes are sent to all
Directors for their comment and records. Minutes of Board
meetings are kept by the company secretary and such minutes
are open for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable
prior notice by any Director.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

By providing all Directors with relevant guideline, updated
materials and training regarding the relevant laws and applicable
regulations, the duties and responsibilities of being a Director,
and relevant disclosure requirements, the Group ensure that
each Director understands and is familiar with the relevant
rules and the latest development. The Group has also provided
funding to each Director, to encourage Directors to participate in
various continuous professional development courses, to ensure
that each Director continue to possess the necessary knowledge
and skills to take part in and contribute to the Board’s affairs.

For the year of 2014, the Directors’ participation in continuous
professional development training are as follows:

REZTEFERNER LEBLENERMK
RIRAHZTHAEES - & e AC 8K A A
WERERF BRATMNESHLAEAN  FHE
A HEEEANAENKERERH -

AA*
EEF‘

FEREXRE

AEEZEBAMEBEFRHEABLEMMRR - ER
ZERER EFENREMNBE  LABERES

ZRWIEs  EHMER LB URAESRES
BT RMASHEBARENRHEER - $‘§IJTIEH
REERULE THEF2HEFIBHERHE
BRRE LAEE%Xi%ﬁﬁi\ﬁPﬁﬁﬁZﬂE&&
RS HEZS R RIELER -

R20145E EFLHENBESTEERBEN
T

Training related to
corporate governance,
regulatory development

and other relevant

professional topics

BFHELEER  BEERER

Director B= HitHEEE T ENEI
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. AN Yubao (Chairman) THRE L E (£/E) Vv
Ms. LI Qian (Chief Executive Officer) Bt (77EAEE) v
Professor ZHU Quan REHIE Vv
Non-Executive Directors FHITES
Mr. WANG Shunlong TlEBE & Vv
Mr. YOUNG Wai Po, Peter GRS E

(Resigned, effective from 28 May 2014) (B BFHTE » R20144F5 528 H 4£3) Vv
Mr. WANG Zi Han T &ML AE

(Resigned, effective from 28 March 2014) (B BHT  R20144F3H28H45%) v
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIUFHTES
Mr. SU Yuanfu BRI E Vv
Mr. FENG Zhongshi IS E L E Vv
Ms. CHENG Xinxin BRARR 22+ Vv
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All Directors have provided record of training attendance and
the Company will continue to arrange and/or fund the training in
accordance with paragraph A.6.5 of the Code Provisions.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION

All Directors have entered into letters of appointment with the
Company for a specific term of three years from the date of
Listing, subject to re-election.

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company,
at each annual general meeting one third of the Directors for
the time being shall retire from office by rotation. However,
if the number of Directors is not a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to but not less than one third shall be the name
of retiring Directors. The Directors who shall retire in each year
will be those who have been longest in the office since their
last re-election or appointment but as for persons who became
or were last re-elected as Directors on the same day those to
retire will (unless they otherwise agree among themselves) be
determined by lot. Such retiring Directors may, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the annual general meeting.
All Directors appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy
shall hold office until the first general meeting of shareholders
after their appointment and be subject to re-election at such
meeting and all Directors appointed by the Board as an addition
to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next following
annual general meeting and shall then be eligible for re-election.
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BOARD COMMITTEES
NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) on 2 December 2013 with written terms
of reference in compliance with paragraph A.5.2 of the Code
Provisions. Its terms of reference are available on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to
review the structure, size and composition of the Board on
regular basis; identify individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members; assess the independence of independent
non-executive Directors; and make recommendations to the
Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment or
re-election of Directors. When identifying suitable candidates
for directorship, the Nomination Committee will carry out the
selection process by making reference to a series of criteria as
bases, including but not limited to skills, experience, education
background, professional knowledge, personal integrity and
time commitments of the proposed candidates, and taking
into consideration of the Company’s Board Diversity Policy. All
candidates must be able to meet the standards as set forth in
Rules 3.08 and 3.09 of the Listing Rules. A candidate who is to
be appointed as an independent non-executive Director should
also meet the independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. Qualified candidates will then be recommended
to the Board for approval.

36

ExgZzee
REZEE

RABER2013F12A2AKL TIREEE S
(MREBZEg])  WRETAEXEAL2BIUE
EETHBEEE - ERESE R N AR R R
R ATHBIRENS o

REZBENIZBREATHRIESTENE
& KRR - MEaEBKAEZENEN
ANE - TIRBUFRITEEOHB LY - UEHE
BESZANEEANEEMNESSREES -
EYVEAENEEREAR  REAZESBL—
RO AELE - BIFEATRNREARRKE -
K HEBS  FENHE - AAFENERER
M UREEARGINEZTESZLEE - B
fix 38 A W5 7B BE 59 m 2 £ T #R Bl £3.08F13.09 16
FTIE ZIR%E - W ERTABILIERNTEEHNIER
B AINVERE SR RIS A3MKIRE A B L S
o SERNREABEBESSIE -



As at the date of this annual report, the Nomination Committee
comprises three members and two of them are independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. SU Yuanfu (chairman),
Ms. CHENG Xinxin and one Executive Director, namely Mr. AN

Yubao. In 2014, the Nomination Committee held one meeting
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and details of the committee members’ attendance are as #l#AT :
follows:
No. of attendance/

No. of committee meeting
Committee member EZEERE HERE ZEE2BRH
Independent non-Executive Directors BAFHITES
Mr. SU Yuanfu (Committee Chairman) BTEtE (ZEE8FE) 11
Ms. CHENG Xinxin B RR R 2 1= 1/1
Executive Director HTES
Mr. AN Yubao ZHEVE A 11
BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY BEEEZ IR

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance. With
a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development,
the Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development, and has adopted
the Board Diversity Policy.

All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against appropriate criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.
Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
background and ethnicity, in addition to educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution
that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

ARRARAYREEEEKRE S TILHRARR
MRAREERRS - REPAIRKERDHNE
B ARRREFEEEARSZ LRI HE
AR GRAREEROBERITE - A H
ETEZEERZ TR -

SEeMBZREAURAES RRA XEZE
ANEBELEENRERI BEMESTEXNEZ T
M MEARBZ - RIZT(CBBELE
£ RYEER  BELR K- AE MRS
THION - RERERRNER - Fik - XEEF
KRk - REBIMABNRERAASESTERH
MWERBMIERE -
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For the purpose of implementation of the Board Diversity Policy,
the following measurable objectives were adopted:

(A) at least 40% of the members of the Board shall be
non-executive directors or independent non-executive
directors;

(B) at least 1/3 of the members of the Board shall be
independent non-executive directors;

(C) atleast 1 of the members of the Board shall have obtained
accounting or relevant financial management professional
qualifications;

(D) at least 50% of the members of the Board shall have 7
years or more of experience in the industry he/she is
specialised in; and

(E)  atleast 2 of the members of the Board shall have China-
related work experience.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) on 2 December 2013 with written
terms of reference in compliance with paragraph B.1.2 of the
Code Provisions. Its terms of reference are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee has adopted the model that it
will review the proposals made by the management on the
remuneration of executive Directors and senior management
and make recommendation to the Board. The Board will
have final authority to approve the recommendations made
by the Remuneration Committee. The primary duties of the
Remuneration Committee also include making recommendation
to the Board on the overall remuneration policy and structure
relating to all Directors and senior management of the
Group and to ensure none of the Directors determine their
own remuneration. The emoluments of executive Directors
are determined based on the skills, knowledge, individual
performance as well as contributions, the scope of responsibility
and accountability of such Directors, taking into consideration of
the Company’s performance and prevailing market conditions.
The remuneration policy of independent non-executive Directors
is to ensure that the independent non-executive Directors are
adequately compensated for their efforts and time dedicated to
the Company’s affairs including their participation in respective
Board committees. The emoluments of independent non-
executive Directors are determined with reference to their skills,
experience, knowledge, duties and market trends.
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As the date of this annual report, the Remuneration Committee
consists of three members and two of them are independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. FENG Zhongshi (chairman),
Mr. SU Yuanfu and one executive Director, namely Ms. LI Qian.
In 2014, the Renumeration Committee held one meeting and
details of the committee members’ attendance are as follows:

EREBRE

RAFREMB 2B FMEESHIBKEAR
B HEF2BABYIENTES DR AKMH
BRE(EF) BFHuEts UR—ZHTE
= BREBERLT - R2014%F - ARBFMEE S
BITTIRGH SLZEGHELERGENRE
#;HaT

No. of attendance/
No. of committee meeting

Committee member EEERE HEXY ZESLBRE
Independent non-Executive Directors BAFHITES

Mr. FENG Zhongshi (Committee Chairman) {0 E %4 (ZEE2F/E) 1/1
Mr. SU Yuanfu BRITAR LA 11
Executive Director BITES

Ms. LI Qian RIFLL 1/1

Details of remuneration of Directors are set out in note 6 to the
Financial Statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) on 2 December 2013 with written terms of reference
in compliance with paragraph C.3.3 and C.3.7 of the Code
Provisions. Its terms of reference are available on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Audit Committee reports to the Board and has held regular
meetings to review and make recommendations to improve the
Group’s financial reporting process and internal controls. The
primary duties of the Audit Committee, among other things, are
to make recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of external auditor, review the financial
statements and material advice in respect of financial reporting
and overseas internal control procedures of the Company.

As at the date of this annual report, the Audit Committee
consists of three members and two of them are independent
non-executive Directors, namely Ms. CHENG Xinxin (chairlady),
Mr. FENG Zhongshi and one non-executive Director, namely Mr.
WANG Shunlong.

EEHMOFBEN G M HRERMEG -

EREES

RNARER2013F12A2BN L TERZE S
([BZZEEg])  WEL2BTAIEXEEC.3.3
CATRUNEHETHEBESE  HBRHEENA
A A) R B X P A AT ERAS

ERZEERNEFERS  LTHERERAR
AW REHEREBZUASEARNEENUBRERZF
RAEREENE - Rt 25 BREZBENEIRRE
BEREIMNEZBEMOERE ENTENRER
EEeRfEERR  BHARAMBRELY
BHREMABEZERFHNERER

RAFEHRBEMZA BERZESHIRKEMA
B BIE2BRFIUIFNTES DRI ARMRMRK
T (ER) RSMELEEARIBRFRTES &
TIERERAE -
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In 2014, the Audit Committee held two meetings and details of
the committee members’ attendance are as follows:

R2014%F - ARBIERZEGBRITT2RE
BELREBERBHFEERORBEIIMAT -

No. of attendance/
No. of committee meeting

Committee member ZEERE HERE  EEESBRE
Independent non-Executive Directors BYKEBITES

Ms. CHENG Xinxin (Committee Chairlady) ~ BiRi&Z+ (ZE&3F /) 2/2
Mr. FENG Zhongshi B E LA 2/2
Executive Director BITES

Mr. WANG Shunlong FIERE £ 2/2

The Audit Committee has reviewed with management of the
Company the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group, and discussed internal controls and financial
reporting matters. The Audit Committee also met with the external
auditors and reviewed this annual report of the Company. The
Board has not taken a different view from the Audit Committee on
the selection, appointment, designation or dismissal of external
auditors.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year of 2014, the Company engaged KPMG as the
external auditors. Apart from providing audit services, KPMG
also provided tax consulting services. The fees in respect
of audit and non-audit services provided by KPMG for the
year ended 31 December 2014 amounted to approximately
RMB1,150,000 and RMB450,000, respectively.

The reporting responsibilities of KPMG are set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 64 to 65.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. YAU Chi Ming and Mr. GAO Haien, being our joint company
secretaries, are primarily responsible for the company secretarial
work of the Group. Mr. GAO currently does not possess the
specified qualifications as required under Rule 3.28 of the
Listing Rules. The Company confirms that Mr. YAU and Mr. GAO
have for the year of 2014 attended no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound and effective
internal control system in order to safeguard the interests
of the shareholders and the assets of the Company against
unauthorised use or disposition, ensuring maintenance of
proper books and records for the provision of reliable financial
information, and ensuring compliance with the relevant rules
and regulations.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control system for the year ended 31
December 2014 and will continue to assess the effectiveness of
internal controls by considering reviews performed by the Audit
Committee and executive management.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The shareholders of the Company may make requisition for
the convening of an extraordinary general meeting ("EGM”) of
the Company in accordance with the procedures set out in the
Articles of Association as follows:

(1) Any one or more shareholders, at the date of deposit of
the requisition, hold not less than one tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company having the right of voting at
general meetings, shall have the right, by written notice,
to require an EGM to be called by the Directors of the
Company for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition.

(2) Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or
the company secretary of the Company at the following:

Principal place of business of the Company in the PRC

Address: 71, Dongpeng Avenue, Eastern section,
Guangzhou Economic and Technological
Development District Guangzhou, PRC
ir@chinaconsun.com

Joint Company Secretary

Email:
Attention:
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Registered Address of the Company

Address: Clifton House, 75 Fort Street,
PO Box 1350,

Grand Cayman KY 1-1108,
Cayman Islands

Attention: Joint Company Secretary

(3) The Board will convene an EGM within 21 days from the

date of deposit of the requisition.

(4) If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board does not
proceed duly to convene such EGM, the requisitionists
themselves may do so in the same manner, as nearly as
possible, as that in which meetings may be convened by
the Board, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall
be reimbursed to them by the Company.

For matters in relation to the Board, the Shareholders can
contact the Company at the following:

Address: 71, Dongpeng Avenue, Eastern section,
Guangzhou Economic and Technological

Development District Guangzhou, PRC

Email: ir@chinaconsun.com

Tel: (86) 20-82264529

Fax: (86) 20-82261886
Attention: Joint Company Secretary

To put forward proposals at a general meeting of the Company, a
shareholder should lodge a written notice of his or her proposal
(“Proposal”) with his or her detailed contact information at
the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong, the
address is: 22nd Floor World-Wide House, 19 Des Voeux Road
Central, Hong Kong.

The request will be verified with the Company’s branch share
registrars in Hong Kong and upon their confirmation that the
request is proper and in order, the Board will be asked to include
the Proposal in the agenda for the general meeting.
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The notice period to be given to all the shareholders for
consideration of the Proposal raised by the shareholder
concerned at the general meeting varies according to the nature
of the Proposal as follows:

(1) At least 14 days’ notice in writing if the Proposal requires
approval by way of ordinary resolution of the Company.

(2) At least 21 days’ notice in writing if the Proposal requires
approval by way of a special resolution of the Company in
an EGM of the Company or an ordinary resolution of the
Company in an annual general meeting of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION

The Board recognizes the importance of good communications
with all shareholders. The Company believes that maintaining
a high level of transparency is a key to enhance investor
relations. The Company is committed to a policy of open and
timely disclosure of corporate information to its shareholders
and public investors.

The Company updates its shareholders on its latest business
developments and financial performance through its corporate
publications including interim and annual reports and public
announcements. Extensive information about the Company’s
activities for the year ended 31 December 2014 has been provided
in this annual report. While the annual general meeting provides
a valuable forum for direct communication between the Board
and its shareholders, the Company also maintains its website
(http://www.chinaconsun.com) to provide an alternative
communication channel for the public and its shareholders. All
corporate communication and Company’s latest updates are
available on the Company’s website for public’s information.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, there has been no
significant change in the Company’s constitutional documents.

Hong Kong, 25 March 2015
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The Board of the Company are pleased to present the annual
report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements (the “Financial Statements”) of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
those of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out
in note 13 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group’s annual results for the year ended 31 December
2014 and its state of affairs as at 31 December 2014 are set out
in the Consolidated Financial Statements on pages 66 to 72.

2014 and
interim dividend of

The Company announced on 27 August
distributed in October 2014 an
RMB38,000,000 (RMBO0.038 per (2013: Nil).
The Directors proposed to declare a final dividend of
RMB28,000,000 (RMB0.028 per share) for the year ended
31 December 2014 (2013: Nil). The proposed final dividend
is subject to approval by the shareholders of the Company at
the annual general meeting to be held on Friday, 22 May 2015

share)

and, if approved, is expected to be paid on or about Monday,
22 June 2015 to shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on Wednesday, 10 June
2015. The final dividend is declared in RMB and will be paid in
HK$ based on the official exchange rate of RMB against HK$ as
quoted by the People’s Bank of China on 10 June 2015.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years ended 31 December 2010 to 2014
is set out on page 148. This summary does not form part of the
Financial Statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of changes in share capital of the Company during the
year of 2014 are set out in note 21 to the Financial Statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2014, the Company’s distributable reserves,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Law Cap. 22 (Law
3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands,
amounted to RMB1,052,427,000 (2013: RMB1,082,669,000).

USE OF PROCEEDS

The net proceeds from the initial public offering of shares on
the Stock Exchange on 19 December 2013 were approximately
RMB774,662,000. During the year of 2014, the Group used
the net proceeds according to the manner as disclosed in
the Prospectus. As at 31 December 2014, the balance of
proceeds not yet utilised was RMB598,488,000, and the Group
will continue to apply the proceeds according to the manner as
stated in the Prospectus.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year of 2014, the aggregate sales attributable to the
Company’s five largest customers, including sales to entities
which are known to the Group to be under common control
with these customers, were approximately 55.4% of the total
sales revenue for the year; sales to the largest customer
accounted for approximately 30.8% thereof. The aggregate
purchases attributable to the Company’s five largest suppliers
were approximately 70.3% of the total purchase for the year;
purchases from the largest supplier accounted for approximately
27.1% thereof.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors,
their associates or any shareholders who owned more than 5%
of the Company’s issued share capital had any beneficial interest
in any of the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers during
the year.

SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATED COMPANIES AND
JOINTLY CONTROLLED COMPANIES

Details of the major subsidiaries of the Group are set out in
Notes 13 to the Financial Statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of changes in the Group’s property, plant and equipment
during the year of 2014 are set out in note 10 to the Financial
Statements.
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CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

During the year, the Group'’s total capital expenditure amounted
to RMB12,969,000 (2013: RMB74,219,000) which was used for
acquisition of properties, plant and equipment. The details of the
properties, plant and equipment of the Group and the changes
in lease prepayments of the Group during the year of 2014 are
set out in note 10 and note 11 to the Financial Statements.

BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2014, the Company had no borrowings (31
December 2013: Nil).

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors of the Company who hold office during the year
and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. AN Yubao (Chairman)

Ms. LI Qian (Chief Executive Officer)
Professor ZHU Quan

Non-executive Directors

Mr. WANG Shunlong

Mr. YOUNG Wai Po, Peter (Resigned, effective from 28 May 2014)
Mr. WANG Zi Han (Resigned, effective 28 March 2014)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. SU Yuanfu

Mr. FENG Zhongshi

Ms. CHENG Xinxin

Each of the Directors has entered into a letter of appointment
with the Company for a term of three years from the date of
Listing, and can be terminated by not less than three months’
notice in writing served by either party on the other. None of
the Directors has a service contract which is not determinable
by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within 1 year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The Company has received annual confirmation on independence
from each of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and all of them are considered
to be independent.
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In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, one
third of the existing Directors shall retire from office at the each
annual general meeting. Accordingly, as determined by lot, Mr.
AN Yubao, Professor ZHU Quan and Mr. WANG Shunlong shall
retire from office at the forthcoming annual general meeting, and
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as otherwise disclosed, there was no contract of
significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director of the Company had a
material interest subsisted at the end of the year or at any time

during the year.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of
the Group are disclosed in the section headed “Directors and
Senior Management Profile” on pages 18 to 28 of this annual
report.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

Each of Mr. AN Yubao, the chairman of the Board of the
Company, Ms. LI Qian, the chief executive officer of the
Company, and Mr. YOUNG Wai Po, Peter (collectively, the
“Controlling Shareholders” or “Non-Competing Covenantors”)
entered into a deed of non-competition (“Deed of Non-
Competition”) on 2 December 2013, pursuant to which the
Non-Competing Covenantors have irrevocably and severally
(but not jointly and severally) undertaken to the Company (for
itself and for the benefit of each of the members of the Group)
that with effect from the date of Listing and for as long as the
shares of the Company remain so listed on the Stock Exchange
and the Controlling Shareholders are individually or collectively
with any of his/its associates interested directly or indirectly
in not less than 30.0% of the issued ordinary share capital of
the Company (the “Restricted Period”), the Non-Competing
Covenantors or their respective associates shall not, (i) directly
or indirectly engage, participate or hold any right or interest in or
render any services to or otherwise be involved in any business
(whether as owner, director, operator, licensor, licensee, partner,
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shareholder, joint venturer, employee, consultant or otherwise) in
competition with or likely to be in competition with the existing
business carried on by the Group (the “Restricted Business”);
and (ii) directly or indirectly take any action which constitutes
an interference with or a disruption of the Restricted Business
including, but not limited to, (a) solicitation of any existing or
then existing employees of the Group for employment by them
or their associates (excluding the Group); (b) solicitation of any
current or then current customers and/or suppliers and/or former
customers and/or suppliers of the Group for the preceding 6
months at the relevant time away from the Group; and (c) without
the consent from the Company, making use of any information
pertaining to the business of the Group which may have come
to their knowledge in their capacity as Substantial Shareholders
for the purpose of engaging, investing or participating in any
Restricted Business. Each of the Non-Competing Covenantors
severally (but not jointly and severally) undertakes to the
Company (for itself and for the benefit of each of the members
of the Group) that, in respect of any order or any part of it
undertaken or proposed to be undertaken by him/her or his/her
associates for the Restricted Business, it shall and shall procure
that his/her associates shall, unconditionally use reasonable
endeavours to procure that such customer(s) to appoint or
contract directly with any member of the Group for the Restricted
Business under the relevant order.

Each of the Non-Competing Covenantors jointly and severally
undertakes to indemnify and keep indemnified the Group against
any damage, loss or liability suffered by the Company or any
other member of the Group arising out of or in connection with
any breach of its undertakings and/or obligations under the
Deed of Non-Competition, including any costs and expenses
incurred as a result of such breach provided that such indemnity
shall be without prejudice to any other rights and remedies the
Company is entitled to in relation to any such breach, including
specific performance, and all such other things and remedies
are hereby expressly reserved by the Company.

Each of the Controlling Shareholders has confirmed to
the Company of his/its compliance with the Deed of Non-
Competition provided to the Company until (i) the date on which
the Company’s shares cease to be listed on the Stock Exchange;
or (ii) the date on which the relevant Convenantor and his/its
associates cease to own 30% or more of the then issued share
capital of the Company directly or indirectly; whichever occurs
first.
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The independent non-executive Directors of the Company had
reviewed the status of compliance as well as confirmation by
the Controlling Shareholders of the Company and, on the basis
of such confirmation, are of the view that such Controlling
Shareholders have complied with their non-competition
undertakings under the Deed of Non-Competition and these non-
competition undertakings have been enforced by the Company
in accordance with its terms.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

We had not entered into any transactions which constitute non-
exempt connected transactions within the meaning of the Listing
Rules during the year of 2014.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company'’s existing Share Option Scheme was approved for
adoption on 2 December 2013 for the purpose to provide the
Company with a flexible means of giving incentive to, rewarding,
remunerating, compensating and or providing benefits to eligible
participants and for such other purposes as the Board approve
from time to time. Subject to the terms of the Share Option
Scheme, the board may, at their absolute discretion, grant or
invite any person belonging to any of the following classes
to take up options to subscribe for shares: (a) any employee,
supplier/service provider, customer, partner or joint-venture
partner of the Group (including any director, whether executive
and whether independent or not, of the Group) who is in full-time
or part-time employment with the Company or any subsidiaries,
(b) any person who have contributed or may contribute to the
Group. The total number of share which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
must not exceed 10% of the total number of shares in issue on
the date of Listing unless the Company seeks the approval of
the shareholders in general meeting for refreshing the 10% limit
under the Share Option Scheme provided that options lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme or any
other share option schemes of the Company will not be counted
for the purpose of calculating 10% limit.
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Details of the principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are
set out in paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” in section
headed “Statutory and General Information” in Appendix V to the
Prospectus. The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are
summarised as follows:

The exercise price per share of the Company for each option
granted shall be determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion but in any event shall be at least the higher of:

(1) the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the
date of offer for the grant of option (“Date of Grant”) which
must be a trading day;

(2) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the
daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for
the five trading days immediately preceding the Date of
Grant; and

(3) the nominal value of the shares on the Date of Grant.

Upon acceptance of the options, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00
to the Company as consideration for the grant. The acceptance
of an offer of the grant of the option must be made within the
date as specified in the offer letter issued by the Company. The
exercise period of any option granted under the Share Option
Scheme shall not be longer than 10 years commencing on the
date of grant and expiring on the last day of such 10-year period
subject to the provisions for early termination as contained in the
Share Option Scheme. The total number of new shares of the
Company that may be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
options schemes of the Company shall not exceed 100,000,000
shares, which represents 10% of the shares in issue of the
Company as at the date of this report. The maximum number
of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted and to be granted to each grantee under the Share
Option Scheme (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total
number of shares in issue. Any further grant of options in excess
of this 1% limit shall be subject to issuance of a circular by the
Company and approved by its shareholders in accordance with
the Listing Rules.
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During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company granted R & ZE2014F12A318 L FE » AR R E [
60,000,000 share options to certain directors and employees. {7 E %= [ 8 T % 160,000,000 fE I HE - ;2 E 08
The exercise price of these share options was HK$6.64 per MiETTHEEAERE6.64B T ZSBEREATA
share, and the aggregate fair value of these share options  # {Ezt AR #138,095,0007T ° % % 5 I A %
amounted to RMB138,095,000. These options vest after one year £ HE1FZE5F5E - A1E 0 LAR20244F3 A23
to five years from the date of grant and are then exercisable on  HEI{T# °

or before 23 March 2024.

(a) The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows: (a) FHGEREEEFDT :

Closing price
of the share

Number immediately Contractual
Tranche of options before the life of
Date of grant number granted Vesting conditions date of grant options
EEETAN
2 Akfz BRE
RHAH R BREHE BREGL KWHE ARED
HKS$
BT
Options granted to employees:
ETEINERE :
28 March 2014 Tranche 1 9,100,000 1 year after the date of grant 598 10 years
201443 H28H Ehsiif Rt BE1E 105
28 March 2014 Tranche 2 9,100,000 2 years after the date of grant 598 10 years
20145 3H28H Fit B BA%&2EF 104
28 March 2014 Tranche 3 10,800,000 3 years after the date of grant 598 10 years
201443 A 28H E=H#t RHBA%&3F 105
28 March 2014 Tranche 4 4,000,000 4 years after the date of grant 598 10 years
201443 H28H Eputkig Bt Big4s 105
28 March 2014 Tranche 5 4,000,000 5 years after the date of grant 598 10 years
201493 A 28H FRH B BA%&SEF 105
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Closing price
of the share
Number immediately Contractual
Tranche of options before the life of
Date of grant number granted Vesting conditions date of grant options
ZERTFAN
g2 AkBz BRE
BHAH #a BREZE BERH WHE ARNES
HK$
BT
Options granted to directors:
RYEROBRE
ZHU Quan
RE
28 March 2014 Tranche 1 900,000 1 year after the date of grant 598 10 years
201453 F28H EoRsiid R BE1E 105
28 March 2014 Tranche 2 900,000 2 years after the date of grant 598 10 years
2014%3R288  Fit BHB%2F 105
28 March 2014 Tranche 3 1,200,000 3 years after the date of grant 598 10 years
201437288  #E=it BHBA%&3F 105
AN Yubao
ZHE
28 May 2014 Tranche 6 3,000,000 1 year after the date of grant 6.18 9.8 years
2014F5H288  EX# Rt Bg1E 9.8
28 May 2014 Tranche 7 3,000,000 2 years after the date of grant 6.18 9.8 years
2014F5A288  #Htit BHB%&2F 9.8
28 May 2014 Tranche 8 4,000,000 3 years after the date of grant 6.18 9.8 years
201453288  E/\itt RHB#%&3F 9.8
LI Qian
RiE
28 May 2014 Tranche 6 3,000,000 1 year after the date of grant 6.18 9.8 years
20145288  #EXN#t BHB®&1E 9.8
28 May 2014 Tranche 7 3,000,000 2 years after the date of grant 6.18 9.8 years
201453288 &t B B%&2F 9.8
28 May 2014 Tranche 8 4,000,000 3 years after the date of grant 6.18 9.8 years
201455H28H EJAN i Bt B183% 9.8%
Total share options granted
RHBRERH 60,000,000
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(b) The number and weighted average exercise prices of
share options are as follows:

(b)
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BRERE RNEFITEENT :

Outstanding at the beginning R RATIE
of the period

Granted during the period BN

Forfeit during the period EAR R 3K

Outstanding at the end of the period  HiZR 4 R 7T1E

Exercisable at the end of the period  HRRAI{T{#

The options outstanding at 31 December 2014 had
an exercise price of HK$6.64 and a weighted-average
remaining contractual life of 9.3 years.

For year ended
31 December 2014

BZ2014%F
12A31BLEE
Weighted

average Share
exercise Options
price Number
In¥EF BRE
TEE A
HK$ ’000 shares
ATT T

A2014%F12831H » B ARITEERELT
FEARG.64ETT  IMEFHRKRELNEN

/9.3 o
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(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions: (c) BREALBERER:
The fair value of services received in return for the share RS B IREMEREN AR AT
options granted is measured by reference to the fair value DEMBLEBRE ARBEFE - KB
of share options granted. The estimated fair value of the RHEM At AR EER - XA
share options granted is measured based on a binomial 2 BRESAHFHELERRAER—
tree model. The contractual life of the share options is HEE - RATTEZTEBE M A = X4
used as an input into this model. Expectations of early A -
exercise are incorporated into the binomial tree model.
Set out below are the fair value of share options and
assumptions.
Tranche number
g
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Fair value at FERARE 260 2.83 3.04 3.23 3.39 257 2.82 3.05
measurement date (&)
(HK$)

Share price (HK$) BB (B7T) 585 585 58 58 58 601 6.01 6.01
Exercise price (HK$)  1T#(8 (&) 6.64 6.64 6.64 6.64 6.64 6.64 6.64 6.64
Expected volatility FBERIE 5798% 5798% 57.98% 57.98% 57.98% 57.97% 57.97%  57.97%
Expected option life EHEREFY 10years 10years 10years 10years 10years 9.8years 9.8 years 9.8 years

106 105F 106 105 108 98F  98F  98%
Expected dividends BHRE - - - - - - - -
Risk-free rate ERBNE 226%  226%  226%  226%  2.26%  191%  191%  191%

54

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining
life of the share options), adjusted for any expected
changes to future volatility based on publicly available
information. Expected dividends are based on historical
dividends. Changes in the subjective input assumptions
could materially affect the fair value estimate.

Share options were granted under service conditions. The
conditions had not been taken into account in the grant
date fair value measurement of the services received.
There was no market conditions associated with the share
option grants.
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Apart from the aforesaid share option schemes, at no time during
the year ended 31 December 2014 was any of the Company
and its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate, and none of the Directors, or their spouses or children
under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the shares in,
or debentures of, the Company, or had exercised any such right.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Board of the Company had adopted a Share Award Scheme
(“Share Award Scheme”) on 21 July 2014 as a means to
recognise the contributions by the selected employees and
provide them with incentives in order to retain them for the
continual operation and development of the Group and attract
suitable personnel for the further development of the Group.

Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, the selected employees
may be granted during the duration of the Share Award Scheme
an award in the form of awarded shares (“Awarded Shares”).
Awarded Shares will be purchased by the trustee of the
Company (“Trustee”) on the market out of cash contributed by
the Company and be held on trust for the selected employees
until such shares are vested on them in accordance with the
provisions of the Share Award Scheme. The Board shall not
make any further award of Awarded Shares which will result in
the nominal value of the shares awarded by the Board under
the Share Award Scheme exceeding 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company from time to time. The maximum number
of shares which may be awarded to a selected employee under
the Share Award Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time. The Awarded
Shares held by the Trustee under the Share Award Scheme shall
not exceed 2% of the issued share capital of the Company from
time to time.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Trustee purchased
9,528,000 Awarded Shares at the cost of RMB45,359,000. Up to
the date of this report, no Awarded Share has been granted by
the Company under the Share Award Scheme.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS OR
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2014, the Directors and chief executives of
the Company had the following interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company,
its group members and/or associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
("SFO”)), as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code:

ESRFETHRABRRKRSG - HERORE
EEERIRR

MR20145F12A318 » EFERAQRREETHA
BRARA - EEEKEB RSB EE (T&
RFES LSRN ([FHFRIEGKRG]) EXVED)
ARty - BN RE#EES  EAERARIE
&5 KBGO EI521& R T 17 B 8 E it 2 &
= RBIRESTRIE g AR A A K B R P A
WmIE

Approximate

Number and Class Percentage of
Name of Director Nature of Interest and Capacity of Securities™" Shareholding
B ERMERSHD HEHERERHO BAREED L
AN Yu Bao® Beneficial Owner 11,344,817 Shares (L) 1.13(L)
ZHE® EmfEA 11,344,817R%(L) 1.13(L)
AN Yu Bao® Interest of controlled corporation 195,000,000 Shares (L) 19.50(L)
ZHE® RYEHIEE S 195,000,000/% (L) 19.50(L)
LI Qian® Beneficial Owner 11,119,261 Shares (L) 1.11(L)
RE EmEEA 11,119,26 1A% (L) 1.11(L)
LI Qian® Interest of controlled corporation 120,000,000 Shares (L) 12.00(L)
RE® RIEHEE R 120,000,0004% (L) 12.00(L)
ZHU Quan® Beneficial Owner 3,000,000 Shares (L) 0.30(L)
KE@ EnEEA 3,000,0008% (L) 0.30(L)
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Notes:

(1)

@)

(3)

(4)

The letter “L” denotes the Directors’ long position in the shares
of the Company or the relevant associated corporation.

Including shares in relation to 10,000,000 Share Options,
10,000,000 Share Options and 3,000,000 Share Options granted
during the year to Mr. AN Yu Bao, Ms. LI Qian and Professor ZHU
Quan respectively under the Share Option Scheme adopted on
2 December 2013.

The entire issued share capital of Central Success Developments
Limited (“Central Success”) is owned by Mr. AN, therefore, Mr.
AN is deemed to be interested in all the shares held by Central
Success under the provisions of SFO.

The entire issued share capital of Double Grace International
Limited (“Double Grace”) is owned by Ms. LI, therefore, Ms. LI is
deemed to be interested in all the shares held by Double Grace
under the provisions of SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, none of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company had any other
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares

or debentures of the Company, any of its group members or
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) which were notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO

(including interests or short positions which they were taken or

deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which
were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein, or which were required,
pursuant to the Model Code.
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Double Grace International Limited ([ Double
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(4)
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TERRRAQARDRMEERSD 2 EH
R/ SHKR

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND/
OR SHORT POSITION IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

20145128318 - MEEMA - L TFALS
BER (EBERARETHRABRIN RARQER
MR T - HEIERAEBREBRES
KMEAEIEBIEXVERE2 R E 35 BIRSCAR AR T
the Company, its group members and/or associated corporations HERERIAR @ KD LABBEBALPEK
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the 55 336{5 A A A)ZATF & & o flt AV S 5%
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or & :

As at 31 December 2014, so far as was known to the Directors,
the following persons/entities (other than the Directors or chief
executives of the Company) had, or were deemed to have,
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of

which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the

Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

Name of Shareholder

Nature of Interest and Capacity

Approximate
Number and Class
of Securities” Shareholding (%)

Percentage of

BRREBHE HEMEREHD BHEHEBERERHO BORERS L

Guidoz Limited® Beneficial owner 160,050,000 shares(L) 16.01(L)

Guidoz Limited® EmEA A 160,050,000/% (L) 16.01(L)

YOUNG Wai Po, Peter® Interest of controlled corporation 160,050,000 shares(L) 16.01(L)

BER® S EE S 160,050,0000% (L) 16.01(L)

Central Success® Beneficial owner 195,000,000 shares(L) 19.50(L)

R EHBEAA 195,000,0008%(L) 19.50(L)

Double Grace® Beneficial owner 120,000,000 shares(L) 12.00(L)

Double Grace® EmEA A 120,000,0000% (L) 12.00(L)

First Kind® Beneficial owner 186,750,000 shares(L) 18.68(L)

First Kind® Em#EEA 186,750,000/%(L) 18.68(L)

Hony Capital Fund Ill, L.P.®)  Interest of controlled corporation 186,750,000 shares(L) 18.68(L)
(“Hony Capital”)

Hony Capital Fund Ill, L.P.®)  Z4EHLEE# 186,750,0000%(L) 18.68(L)
(“Hony Capital”)

Hony Capital Fund Il G.P., Interest of controlled corporation 186,750,000 shares(L) 18.68(L)
L‘P_(S)

Hony Capital Fund Il G.P,, YRS AE S 186,750,0000% (L) 18.68(L)
L.P®

Hony Capital Fund Il Interest of controlled corporation 186,750,000 shares(L) 18.68(L)
G.P. Limited®

Hony Capital Fund IlI SRS EE S 186,750,0000% (L) 18.68(L)
G.P. Limited®

Hony Capital Management Interest of controlled corporation 186,750,000 shares(L) 18.68(L)
Limited®

Hony Capital Management SRS EE S 186,750,000/% (L) 18.68(L)

Limited®
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Name of Shareholder

Nature of Interest and Capacity
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Approximate
Percentage of

of Securities” Shareholding (%)

BRREBHE ERtER G BEHEBERERHO BORERD L
Hony Managing Partners Interest of controlled corporation 186,750,000 shares(L) 18.68(L)
Limited®
Hony Managing Partners SIS EE R 186,750,0000%(L) 18.68(L)
Limited®
ZHAO John Huan® Interest of controlled corporation 186,750,000 shares(L) 18.68(L)
HIE® RIEHEE S 186,750,0004% (L) 18.68(L)
Greenwoods Asset Investment manager 68,135,000 shares(L) 6.81(L)
Management
Limited ©&)
Greenwoods Asset REKIE 68,135,000/%(L) 6.81(L)
Management
Limited®&®
Greenwoods Asset Interest of controlled corporation 68,135,000 shares(L) 6.81(L)
Management
Holdings Limited®®
Greenwoods Asset S EE S 68,135,000/%(L) 6.81(L)
Management
Holdings Limited®3)
Unique Element Corp.©®3" Interest of controlled corporation 68,135,000 shares(L) 6.81(L)
Unique Element Corp.©&® ZPEHAE S 68,135,000/%(L) 6.81(L)
JIANG Jinzhi®&™) Interest of controlled corporation 68,135,000 shares(L) 6.81(L)
H iR 5O S EE S 68,135,000/%(L) 6.81(L)
Harvest Fund Management Investment manager and 50,008,000 shares(L) 5.00(L)
Co., Ltd.® beneficial owner
Harvest Fund Management  REKBREREF A 50,008,000%(L) 5.00(L)
Co., Ltd.®
China Credit Trust Co., Ltd.® Interest of controlled corporation 50,008,000 shares(L) 5.00(L)
China Credit Trust Co., Ltd.® SZEHAE R 50,008,000/%(L) 5.00(L)
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(1)

@)

(3)

(4)

(%)

(6)

60

The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the shares
of the Company or the relevant Group member. The letter “S”
denotes the person’s short position in the shares of the Company
or the relevant Group member.

The entire issued share capital of Guidoz Limited is legally and
beneficially owned by Mr. YOUNG. By virtue of the SFO, Mr.
YOUNG is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by
Guidoz Limited.

The entire issued share capital of Central Success is legally
and beneficially owned by Mr. AN. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. AN
is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Central
Success.

The entire issued share capital of Double Grace is legally and
beneficially owned by Ms. LI. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. LI is
deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Double Grace.

The entire issued share capital of First Kind International Limited
(“First Kind”) is legally and beneficially owned by Hony Capital.
Hony Capital is controlled by its sole general partner, Hony
Capital Fund Il G.P, L.P.. Hony Capital Fund Ill G.P, L.P. is in
turn controlled by its sole general partner, Hony Capital Fund Il
G.P. Limited. Hony Capital Fund Ill G.P. Limited is wholly owned
by Hony Capital Management Limited, which is in turn owned
as to 80.0% by Mr. ZHAO John Huan (through Hony Managing
Partners Limited, a company wholly owned by him).

Greenwoods Asset Management Limited controls 6.81% of
the Company’s shares through Golden China Master Fund,
Greenwoods China Alpha Master Fund, Golden China Plus
Master Fund Ltd and in the capacity of Manager of the funds. The
entire issued share capital of Greenwoods Asset Management
Limited is legally and beneficially owned by Greenwoods Asset
Management Holdings Limited. Greenwoods Asset Management
Holdings Limited is ultimately owned as to 81% by Unique
Element Corp which is controlled by Mr. JIANG Jinzhi.

Hiat

(1)

2

(3)

(4)

(%)

(6)
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(7) The Company has been informed by Greenwoods Asset
Management Limited that it acquired a net total of 7,555,000
shares from the market for funds and accounts under its
management during the period from 18 February 2014 to 31
December 2014.

(8) Harvest Fund Management Co., Ltd. directly holds 16,997,000
shares of the Company. Harvest Fund Management Co., Ltd.
holds all the equity interests of Harvest Global Investments
Limited, and Harvest Global Investments Limited holds
33,011,000 shares of the Company. Accordingly Harvest
Fund Management Co., Ltd. is deemed to be interested in the
33,011,000 shares of the Company held by Harvest Global
Investments Limited under the SFO. China Credit Trust Co., Ltd.
holds 40% equity interests of Harvest Fund Management Co.,
Ltd. Accordingly China Credit Trust Co., Ltd. is deemed to be
interested in 50,008,000 shares of the Company held by Harvest
Fund Management Co., Ltd. under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, the Directors
were not aware of any other persons/entities (other than the
Directors and chief executive of the Company) who had interests
or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company, its group members or associated corporations which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO.

COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF INTERESTS

During the year ended 31 December 2014, none of the Directors
or Controlling Shareholders of the Company or any of their
respective associates has engaged in any business that
competes or may compete with the business of the Group or
has any other conflict of interests with the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Except for the 9,528,000 Awarded Shares purchased by the
Trustee according to the Share Award Scheme, the Company
did not redeem any of its listed securities, and neither did the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchase or sell any of the
Company'’s listed securities during the year ended 31 December
2014.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for the pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association, or the laws of the Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules
during the year ended 31 December 2014.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Details of the Group’s corporate governance practices can be
found in the Corporate Governance Report contained on pages
29 to 483 in this annual report.

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

To determine the eligibility of the shareholders of the Company
to attend the annual general meeting to be held on Friday, 22
May 2015, the Company’s register of members will be closed
from Tuesday, 19 May 2015 to Friday, 22 May 2015 (both
days inclusive), during which period no transfer of shares will
be effected. In order to be entitled to attend and vote at the
annual general meeting, all completed transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificate must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Central, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong,
for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 18 May 2015.

In addition, to determine shareholders’ entitlement to the final
dividend, the Company'’s register of members will be closed from
Friday, 5 June 2015 to Wednesday 10 June 2015 (both days
inclusive) on the assumption that the resolution for declaring
the final dividend is duly passed at the annual general meeting.
In order to qualify for the entitlements to the final dividend, all
completed transfers documents accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch
registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited,
at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wan Chai Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 pm on
Thursday, 4 June 2015.
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting will be held on Friday, 22 May
2015. Shareholders should refer to details regarding the annual
general meeting in the circular of the Company to be issued in
due course and the notice of the annual general meeting and
form of proxy accompanying thereto.

AUDITORS

A resolution to re-appoint the retiring auditors, KPMG, is to be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

By order of the Board
Consun Pharmaceutical Group Limited

AN Yubao
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 25 March 2015
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BY AR E

hcprac

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Consun Pharmaceutical Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Consun Pharmaceutical Group Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”), set out on pages 66 to
147, which comprise the consolidated and Company statements
of financial position as at 31 December 2014, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2014 and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

25 March 2015
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CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED REHZXEEHRA A

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

mERER

for the year ended 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi)

HE2014F12A31BILEEFE (UAREZ7)

2014 2013
20145 20134
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
it AR®T T AR®ET T
Turnover L 2 730,683 571,765
Cost of sales SHE KA (158,916) (119,531)
Gross profit ER 571,767 452,234
Other revenue HAa A 3(a) 37,585 13,434
Other net (loss)/income HihF (B8) K= 3(b) (96) 412
Distribution costs o EEAK AR (230,971) (177,926)
Administrative expenses THHAX (114,126) (77,692)
Profit before taxation B A= 4 264,159 210,462
Income tax FT1SHE 5(a) (52,959) (57,580)
Profit for the year attributable RRA TR RENS
to equity shareholders of FREF
the Company 211,200 152,882
Basic and diluted earnings per share BREXREBERR
(expressed in RMB Yuan per share) (AFBRAREITIITR) 9 0.21 0.20
 EF14TE 2 AZEREHREMNHERK

The notes on page 73 to 147 form part of these financial 273
=B

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other

ANNUAL REPORT 2014 G5 s

Comprehensive Income

e RkEMZERKER
for the year ended 31 December 2014  (Expressed in Renminbi)
BHZE2014F12A31ALFE (UARKEEZ))

2014 2013
20145 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETIT

Profit for the year FREF 211,200 152,882
Other comprehensive income for the year FREMZEWE
Exchange differences on translation of financial #E#arh#E A RHFME ([FHE )

statements of operations outside the People’'s BN B TSR =AY

Republic of China (the “PRC”), net of tax fEHER - NRTIE 348 9
Total comprehensive income for the year AAREZRREGEA

attributable to equity shareholders of 2HWNSLEE

the Company 211,548 152,891

The notes on page 73 to 147 form part of these financial Z73BEF
statements. & o

147TEZ M RZER B RERAEK

67



CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED REHZXEEHRA A

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MBRR R

as at 31 December 2014  (Expressed in Renminbi)

MN2014512A8318H (LAAREZ7)

2014 2013
20145 20134
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
it ARETR ARBFIT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment MEE - BB M ERE 10 229,914 232,270
Lease prepayments HETERFRIE 11 24,201 24,828
Other investments H & 12 2,600 2,600
Deferred tax assets R ITEEE 20 9,697 4,558
Total non-current assets EREEELE 266,412 264,256
Current assets REBEE
Inventories s 14 53,482 48,966
Trade and other receivables 2 5 & E A fEW R IE 15 248,478 241,697
Other investments HigE 12 250,900 =
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEFEHER 16 843,669 902,026
Total current assets RBEELAE 1,396,529 1,192,689
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables B 5 R E A ENRIA 17 150,678 138,428
Deferred income PRI =5 18 436 436
Current tax payable JFE AT BN EARR 3K 20 27,133 11,251
Total current liabilities BB EREE 178,247 150,115
Net current assets REIEEFEE 1,218,282 1,042,574
Total assets less current liabilities #AEERGEBERE 1,484,694 1,306,830
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e Bk R

as at 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi)

M2014F12A318 (UAAREZZ)

2014 2013
20145 20134
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

HiiE ARBTR ARETIT

Non-current liabilities ERBERS

Deferred income RIEW 7 18 12,018 9,567
Deferred tax liabilities BEETRIBEE 20 39,490 39,899
Total non-current liabilities FnBAERAE 51,508 49 466
Net assets EEFE 1,433,186 1,257,364
Capital and reserves EARE#EE

Share capital A% A 21(c) 78,250 78,250
Reserves HiE 21(d) 1,354,936 1,179,114
Total equity B 1,433,186 1,257,364

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on ~ R2015F3 A25 AR E RS #HL/E MK HE1T
25 March 2015.

AN Yubao LI Qian
ZHE BB

Chairman Executive Director
E HITEE

The notes on page 73 to 147 form part of these financial $73BZEE1478 Wik RZEV B MEKMNEK
statements. ol
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CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED REHZXEEHRA A

Statement of Financial Position

ISR R

as at 31 December 2014  (Expressed in Renminbi)

MN2014512A8318H (LAAREZ7)

2014 2013
2014% 20134
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
it ARETR ARBFIT
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investment in subsidiaries RSB R AEKE 13 342,444 342,444
Trade and other receivables B 5 R HE A e GRIE 15 6,104 =
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 348,548 342,444
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables g5 N HEmEN A 15 281,003 15,057
Cash and cash equivalents ReMReEEER 16 513,293 824,727
Total current assets RBEERE 794,296 839,784
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables H M pE R 5RIE 17 9,893 21,309
Net current assets REEEFEE 784,403 818,475
Total assets less current liabilities ®“EERABEE 1,132,951 1,160,919
Capital and reserves EARE#EE
Share capital A% A 21(c) 78,250 78,250
Reserves EE 21(d) 1,054,701 1,082,669
Total equity R 1,132,951 1,160,919

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 201543 25 B & EE &t i RIFRERTT o
25 March 2015.

AN Yubao LI Qian
ZHE RE

Chairman Executive Director
FiE HITEE

N

The notes on page 73 to 147 form part of these financial H73EEF147B 2N AZEY HREMNAK
statements. o o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

M A i 3¢
mERREER
for the year ended 31 December 2014  (Expressed in Renminbi)
BHZE2014F12A31ALFE (UARKEEZ))
Shares
held under
share PRC
Share Share Exchange  Capital Other award statutory Retained
capital premium  reserve reserves  reserves  scheme  reserve  earnings Total
RERR
REHE
kx  ROEE EXGE SRR HEBE BEORG DELERE REEN gt
Note  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'00  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000
M \RBTL ARETL ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Note21  Note21  Note2! ~ Note21  Note2!  Note19  Note 21
I 1 N I
Wi MRt MRt ME21 WE2 MR KE2
(c) (i) () ()i (d)iv) (b (dw)
As at 1 January 2013 R2013F1A1A 1 - (190) - 80769 - 58083 216515 355178
Changes in equity for 2013:  2013EHEHET :
Profit for the year R - - - - - - - 152882 152,882
Other comprehensive income  Zft2ENE - - 9 - - - - - 9
Total comprehensive income AL - - 9 = - = - 152882 152,891
Special dividends approved ~ SLBHFEHES
and paid kS 21(b) - - = = - = - (51,555)  (51,555)
Net proceeds from issue of RERDRBEREN
ordinary shares upon initil LRRAEIETE
public offering 21(c) 19563 781,287 - - - - - - 800850
Capitalisation issue offering BN ET%E 2(c) 58686  (58,686) - - - - - - -
As at 31 December 2013 R2013%12A31R 78,250 722,601 (181) - 80,769 - 58,083 317,842 1,257,364
As at 1 January 2014 R201451 818 78,250 722,601 (181) - 80,769 - 58083 317,842 1,257,364
Changes in equity for 2014 2014EHEHET :
Profit for the year R - - - - - - - 211,200 211,200
Other comprehensive income  Eft2EWE - - 348 - - - - - 348
Total comprehensive income 2 EWEEE - - 348 - - - - 211,200 211,548
Appropriations to statutory ERTETHE
reserve 21(d) - - - - - - 1,732 (1,732 -
Interim dividends approved and  #tER % (HE1ERIRE
paid 21(b) - (38,000 - - - - - - (38,000)
Equity settled share-based RS S T IAR
payment transactions 21(a) - - - 47,633 - - - - 47,633
Shares purchased under the  AERHNER S
Share Award Scheme 21(a) - - - - - (45359 - - (45,359)
As at 31 December 2014 H2014512A318 78250 684,601 167 47,633 80,760  (45350) 50815 527,310 1,433,186

The notes on page 73 to 147 form part of these financial

statements.

FBAEEFIATAZHERZEVBRR AN

;B o

71



§

CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED REHZXEEHRA A

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

FEEERER
for the year ended 31 December 2014

(Expressed in Renminbi)

BE2014F12R31BIEFE (AARKEEZ7))
2014 2013
2014%F 20134
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HtaE AR®T R ARETTT
Operating activities RETTE
Cash generated from operations REFTEIRE 16(b) 337,346 207,559
PRC income tax paid B ESH (42,625) (43,949)
Net cash generated from operating K& EEFFEHELSFEE
activities 294,721 163,610
Investing activities KREEE
Interest received AL &IPS\ 23,593 3,230
Payment for purchase of property, BEWE  WEMEHEHTE
plant and equipment (20,972) (64,085)
Proceeds received from disposal of HEWE  BEMRESHIEAE
property, plant and equipment - 663
Proceed from pledged deposits BRI RS RIE - 76,470
Net increase in available-for-sale A E SR EERIE INFERE
financial assets (250,900) -
Net cash (used in)/generated from R&E5EE (FrH), FEBHEERE
investing activities (248,279) 16,278
Financing activities mEEE
Proceeds of loans and borrowings B R EFETERIE 20,000 37,000
Repayments of loans and borrowings &7 & f& 78 3z (20,000) (37,000)
Proceeds from issuance of shares BT P15 3IE - 852,925
Listing expenses paid B EmAX (21,440) (30,635)
Dividends paid B E (38,000) (181,907)
Payment for purchase of shares REERR (0 LEE)ET BITB T
under Share Award Scheme HIFRI8 (45,359) -
Net cash (used in)/generated from ®&EES (FfH),  FEBHEEEE
financing activities (104,799) 640,383
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and RERBRELEEEEMN OBL)
cash equivalents 0= 5 (58,357) 820,271
Cash and cash equivalents at MABIBENEREERAEEEER
1 January 902,026 81,755
Cash and cash equivalents at M12A31ENRERES
31 December ZEIEH 843,669 902,026

The notes on page 73 to 147 form
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”)
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong

and

Kong. These financial statements also comply with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, which for this financial year
and the comparative period continue to be those of
the predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 32), in accordance with transitional and
saving arrangements for Part 9 of the new Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), “Accounts
and Audit”, which are set out in sections 76 to 87
of Schedule 11 to that Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group is set
out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting period of
the Group and the Company. Note 1(c) provides
information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting

periods reflected in these financial statements.

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B BHIERIN - UAREDIR)
1 BEAEFHEE
(a) EHREH

ZEMBRRDIREMEERNE
ARBHmE RN ([FEMBRELE
Al]) REL - HREAGRABREAEE
ROERNEBHNBHREEL  BE
gitmAg ([EEEFMAE])
BB BE LR ([FAFE
A1) RRE URBELAREE
A - B EE QB GH (F622
5) RO MR B RBEF] 2@EN
KRB ZBENRTE (B % G HIF
RNFBT6ESTIR) » ZFHHHMK
RAFREE K LB AR A 4B 8 <7
AIEE R A MED] (£328) #HE A
BREX - aFUBRENITEE
BHAERIMERARES LMR
160 A B B MRS - NSRBI AT IR
MEASHRRBEEN T -

TEEMASERHE TRAE
B RARRRITEEHEERER
AT IR R R ] MR ERT R
BB ImEER o 1) ER
AastHE b E e MR ERE
EA Y R A HRE A RRA]
FTERAZEERMEE ZEMER
HREBRHEER -
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CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED REHZXEEHRA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B BEHH -

1

74

AAREIITR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2014 comprise the Company
and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the
“Group”).

The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (“RMB”),
nearest thousand, which is the functional currency

rounded to the

of the subsidiaries carrying out the principal
activities of the Group.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis.
The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in Note 25.

1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c)

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued the following amendments
to HKFRSs and one new Interpretation that are first
effective for the current accounting period of the
Group and the Company:

. Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27, Investment entities

o Amendments to HKAS 32, Offsetting

financial assets and financial liabilities

° Amendments to HKAS 36, Recoverable
amount disclosures for non-financial assets

o Amendments to HKAS 39, Novation of
derivatives and continuation of hedge
accounting

° HK(IFRIC) 21, Levies

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS
27, Investment entities

The amendments provide consolidation relief to
those parents which qualify to be an investment
entity as defined in the amended HKFRS 10.
Investment entities are required to measure their
subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss.
These amendments do not have an impact on
these financial statements as the Company does
not qualify to be an investment entity.

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=EHERIN - UARKEIITR)
1 EXETEE (&)
(c) EBFEXEH
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CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED REHZXEEHRA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B BEHH -

1

76

AAREIITR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 32, Offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify the offsetting
criteria in HKAS 32. The amendments do not have
an impact on these financial statements as they
are consistent with the policies already adopted
by the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 36, Recoverable amount
disclosures for non-financial assets

The amendments to HKAS 36 modify the disclosure
requirements for impaired non-financial assets.
Among them, the amendments expand the
disclosures required for an impaired asset or
cash generating unit whose recoverable amount
is based on fair value less costs of disposal. The
amendments do not have an impact on these
financial statements as the Group does not have

any impaired non-financial assets.

Amendments to HKAS 39, Novation of derivatives
and continuation of hedge accounting

The amendments to HKAS 39 provide relief from
discontinuing hedge accounting when novation of
a derivative designated as a hedging instrument
meets certain criteria. The amendments do not
have an impact on these financial statements as
the Group has not novated any of its derivatives.

HK (IFRIC) 21, Levies

The Interpretation provides guidance on when a
liability to pay a levy imposed by a government
should be recognised. The amendments do not
have an impact on these financial statements as
the guidance is consistent with the Group’s existing
accounting policies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and
cash flows and any unrealised profits arising from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as
unrealised gains but only to the extent that there
is no evidence of impairment.

losses resulting from

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see Note 1(i)).

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE SRR B

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BR=AEHEHEIN
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1

78

(e)

AAREIITR)

Other investments

(i)

(i)

Equity securities that does not have a
quoted market price in an active market for
an identical instrument and whose fair value
cannot otherwise be reliably measured are
recognised in the statement of financial
position at cost less impairment losses
(Note 1(i)).

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are initially stated at fair value,
which is their transaction price unless
fair value can be more reliably estimated
using valuation techniques whose variables
include only data from observable markets.
Cost includes attributable transaction cost.

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are classified as current assets.
Any attributable transaction costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
At the end of each reporting period the
fair value is remeasured, with any resultant
gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss does not include any interest
earned on these financial assets as these
are recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(f)

ANNUAL REPORT 2014 G5 s

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and
equipment are stated at cost less accumulated

depreciation and impairment losses (Note 1(i)):

- Buildings held for own use which are
situated on leasehold land classified as held
under operating leases (Note 1(h)); and

- Other items of plant and equipment.

The cost of self-constructed items of property,
plant and equipment includes the cost of materials,
direct labour and the initial estimate, where
relevant, of the costs of dismantling and removing
the items and restoring the site on which they are
located.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement
or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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(f)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their
estimated residual value, if any, using the straight
line method over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

- Buildings situated on leasehold land
are depreciated over the shorter of the
unexpired term of lease and their estimated
useful lives, being no more than 50 years
after the date of completion

- Machinery and equipment 10 years
- Motor vehicles 5 years
= Office equipment 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost
of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis
between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(9)

(h)

Research and development costs

Research and development costs comprise all
costs that are directly attributable to research and
development activities or that can be allocated on a
reasonable basis to such activities. Because of the
nature of the Group’s research and development
activities, the criteria for the recognition of such
costs as an asset are generally not met until late
in the development stage of the project when
the remaining development costs are immaterial.
Hence both research costs and development costs
are generally recognised as expenses in the period
in which they are incurred.

Lease prepayments

Lease prepayments represent cost of land use
rights paid to the PRC government authorities. Land
use rights are stated as cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses (Note 1(i)).
Amortisation is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the respective period of
the rights.
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AARKETITR)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(i) Impairment of assets
(i) Impairment of trade and other receivables

Investments in trade and other receivables

that are stated at cost or amortised cost are

reviewed at the end of each reporting period

to determine whether there is objective

evidence of impairment. Objective evidence

of impairment includes observable data that
comes to the attention of the Group about
one or more of the following loss events:

significant financial difficulty of the
debtor;

a breach of contract, such as a
default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments;

it becoming probable that the
debtor will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation; and

significant changes in the
technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor;

1

BAEHBE ()
() EERE
() EZRAMERFELFBE

RN K B B AN B BRI TR
B 5 REMEEFIENIRE
Ty & S R - IARE
ERBARMENTEER -
BENEEEREREAKH
EREBEB T —HHKZH
BREMANABRER

= BEEABEBERYBERN
£ ;

— B R EE
o0 HA B8 B B gk AR
> 3

- EBAFERESE
TTHMMEEHR &

~ BB WB - EER
AEREELREAD
Sl N

B/ 988 .
T



ANNUAL REPORT 2014 G5 s

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of trade and other receivables
(continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment
loss is determined and recognised as
follows:

= For trade and other receivables
carried at amortised cost, the
impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e.
the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition of these assets),
where the effect of discounting
is material. This assessment is
made collectively where these
financial assets share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar
past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired.
Future cash flows for financial assets
which are assessed for impairment
collectively are based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit
risk characteristics similar to the
collective group.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1 BEARETBER (&)

84

If in a subsequent period the amount
of an impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be linked
objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised,
the impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal of
an impairment loss shall not result
in the asset's carrying amount
exceeding that which would have
been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade and other receivables included within
trade and other receivables, whose recovery
is considered doubtful but not remote. In
this case, the impairment losses for doubtful
debts are recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group is satisfied that
recovery is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against trade and
other receivables directly and any amounts
held in the allowance account relating
to that debt are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged to
the allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in
the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written
off directly are recognised in profit or loss.

(i) Impairment of assets (continued) (i) BERE (&)
(i)  Impairment of trade and other receivables () EZREMEKIERHE
(continued) (%)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i) Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that the
following assets may be impaired or, an
impairment loss previously recognised no
longer exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment,

- lease prepayments,

- Other investments, and

- Investment in subsidiaries in the
Company's statement of financial
position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset
is the greater of its fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of time value
of money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of
assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit).
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ARE SRR B

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(RBEEBAINN - AARKDR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1 BEARETBER (&)

(i) Impairment of assets (continued) (i) BERE (&)
(ii)  Impairment of other assets (continued) (i) BiELEHE (2)
- Recognition of impairment losses - R EEE
An impairment loss is recognised in WMEEXEMBRS
profit or loss if the carrying amount EABMRNREER
of an asset, or the cash-generating WEAT B 2 B E

unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated
to reduce the carrying amount of the
assets in the unit (or group of units)
on a pro rata basis, expect that the
carrying value of an asset will not
be reduced below its individual fair
value less costs to sell, or value in
use, if determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if
there has been a favourable change
in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is
limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to
profit or loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()]

(k)

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average
cost formula and comprises all costs of purchase,
costs of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount
of those inventories is recognised as an expense
in the period in which the related revenue is
recognised. The amount of any write-down of
inventories to net realisable value and all losses
of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories
is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance
for impairment of doubtful debts (Note 1(i)).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1
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U]

(m)

(n)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit
or loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the
effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value and are subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(o) Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in
which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present

values.

Annual contributions to retirement benefit
schemes operated by the government in the
PRC are recognised in the profit or loss as
and when incurred.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in a
capital reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at grant date using the binomial
free model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options
were granted. Where the employees have
to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the
total estimated fair value of the options is
spread over the vesting period, taking into
account the probability that the options will
vest.
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AAREIITR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(o) Employee benefits (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Share-based payments (continued)

During the vesting period, the number of
share options that is expected to vest is
reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior
years is charged/credited to the profit or loss
for the year of the review, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve. On vesting
date, the amount recognised as an expense
is adjusted to reflect the actual number
of options that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve) except
where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market
price of the Company’s shares. The equity
amount is recognised in the capital reserve
until either the option is exercised (when
it is included in the amount recognised in
share capital for the shares issued) or the
option expires (when it is released directly
to retained profits).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when it recognises restructuring costs
the payment of

involving termination

benefits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(P)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case the relevant amounts of tax are
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.
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AAREIITR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(P)

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that
may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of
existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as
the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back
or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from the initial recognition of
assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting
nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of a
business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the
extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the
Group controls the timing of the reversal and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(P)

Income tax (continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of
the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not

discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it
becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances,
and movements therein, are presented separately
from each other and are not offset. Current tax
assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and
deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities,
if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and
liabilities, the Group intends either to settle
on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously; or

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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AAREIITR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(P)

(a)

Income tax (continued)

- in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on

either:

° the same taxable entity; or

° different taxable entities, which,
in each future period in which

significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to
be settled or recovered, intend to
realise the current tax assets and
settle the current tax liabilities on
a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group or the
Company has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle
the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot
be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed
as a contingent liability, unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

1
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the

consideration received or receivable. Provided it is

probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable,
can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised

in profit or loss as follows:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are
delivered at the customers’ premises which
is taken to be the point in time when the
customer has accepted the goods and the
related risks and rewards of ownership.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any
trade discounts.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
statements of financial position initially when
there is reasonable assurance that they will
be received and that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to them. Grants
that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as revenue in profit
or loss on a systematic basis in the same
periods in which the expenses are incurred.
Grants that compensate the Group for the
cost of an asset are recognised initially as
deferred income and amortised to profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the
useful life of the asset by way of reduced
depreciation expense.

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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AAREIITR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s) Related parties

(a)

(b)

A person, or a close member of that person’s

family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i)

(i)

(iiif)

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the
Group; or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(if)

(iiif)

(iv)

The entity and
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary

the Group are

and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other
entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment
the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

benefit plan for
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s)

®)

Related parties (continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (continued)
(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in
(a).
(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

Close family members of an individual
are those family members who may be
expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that individual in their dealings with the
entity.

Segment reporting

Management has determined operating segments
with reference to the reports reviewed by the
chief operating decision maker of the Group that
are used to assess the performance and allocate
resources.

The chief operating decision maker of the Group
assesses the performance and allocates the
resources of the Group as a whole, as all of the
Group’s activities are considered to be primarily
dependent on the performance on sales of
pharmaceutical products. Therefore, management
considers there to be only one operating segment
under the requirements of HKFRS 8, Operating
Segments. In this regard, no segment information
is presented for the years.

No geographic information is shown as the Group’s
operating profit is entirely derived from activities
of manufacturing and sale of pharmaceutical
products in the PRC.

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(RBEEBAINN - AARKDR)

2

98

TURNOVER

The principal activities of the Group are manufacturing
and sales of pharmaceuticals.

Revenue represents the sales value of goods supplied to
customers. Revenue excludes sales taxes and surcharges
and is after deduction of any trade discounts. The amount

EE S
AEBNETEXBREREENHE -

WAEHREGEPNERWIHEEER - K
ATBEHETREMMNE - YENKREMR
BHIH - READREXBRERNE T

of each significant category of revenue recognised in ZWALERIN LT -
turnover during the year is as follows:

2014 2013
20145 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTTT
Kidney medicines BmREEY) 580,309 446,267
Contrast medium S b | 107,083 85,123
Others Hip 43,291 40,375
730,683 571,765

Revenue from major customers contributing over 10% of
the turnover of the Group, is as follows, including sales
to entities which are known to the Group to be under
common control with these customers:

KEXRSHBEEBEAEEBAI0%HEFH
BA(BRAAEESEEAZEEFZH
RES 2 ERIFLAHEE) &

2014 2013

20145 20134

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBTTT

Customer A BEFH 225,276 114,463
Customer B ®RZ 85,739 N/A “IiE A

Revenue from customer B contributed less than 10%
of the turnover of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2013.

REZ2013F12A31H LFEERBEF
LW ALAREBUIARI10% ©
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ARE SRR B
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBEEBAIN - AARKIR)
3 OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET (LOSS)/ 3 Hanlg A R H AT (BE), W

INCOME
(a) Other revenue (a) HfbkA
2014 2013
2014% 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR ARBTTT
Government grants AT B
— Unconditional subsidies (i) — EEEREEE (i) 7,211 8,390
— Conditional subsidies (Note 18) — B{&EmEL (FizE18) 1,549 724
Interest income T B ES 28,791 4,216
Others Hi 34 104
37,585 13,434
(i) Government grants represent various forms (i) BT #6546 Hp B 4, 75 BT
of incentives and subsidies granted to the AR TAEENTNRER
Group by the local government authorities B R AH B o
in the PRC.
(b)  Other net (loss)/income (b) HAE (BE) W%
2014 2013
20145 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%¥TR ARBTIT
Loss on disposal of fixed assets REETEEELNER (95) (469)
Others HAftb (1) 881

(96) 412
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ARE SRR B
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(RBEEBAINN - AARKDR)

4 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 4 B A A

100

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging:

BADE M TIHRIA T FIBRED

(a)  Staff costs (a) BImK

2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR AR¥ETTT

Salaries, wages, bonuses and e I& T4
benefits K@ A 122,917 97,851
Contribution to retirement schemes RIRET B 4,565 3,548

Employee share-based payment LARRAD 2 E 2 5
(Note 19) EERIE (Hat19) 47,633 =
175,115 101,399

Staff costs includes directors’ and senior

management’s remuneration (Note 6 and Note 7).

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and
regulations in the PRC, the PRC subsidiaries
participate in defined contribution retirement
benefit schemes (the “Schemes”) organised by
the local government authorities whereby the PRC
subsidiaries are required to make contributions to
the Schemes based on certain percentages of the
eligible employee’s salaries. The local government
authorities are responsible for the entire pension
obligations payable to the retired employees. The
Group has no other obligations for payments of
retirement and other post-retirement benefits of
employees other than the contributions described
above.

BTRABEEFTESHEEEDN
B4 (FtaEe RiaE7) ©

RIBH B ERS R A LR
o B Y R B 2 B e 3t 77 R T R
AR FUE SRR E AT 8 (5T
2 Bt PENBARAR
RABEREBHFENEA N LA
S| 1E AR o 5 BUT # R A E )
BRAREEXNE2HEARSHEE -
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBEEBAIN - AARKIR)

4 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 4 BADER (2)
(b)  Other items (b) HftbEH
2014 2013
20145 20134
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HtaE AR¥T ARBTIT
Depreciation e 10 15,230 12,314
Amortisation b3 11 627 553
Auditor’s remuneration ZE A &
— audit services — st R1% 1,150 900
— non-audit services — EFFARTE 450 4,473
Impairment losses recognised/ R/ (#E) )RR
(reversed) for doubtful debts  JF{EEE 15(b) 175 (663)
Operating lease charges KEHEER 1,024 320
Research and development
cost? T EE B AR 27,475 20,827
Cost of inventories* FER A" 14 158,916 119,531
Listing expenses EmEA 420 23,662
During the year ended 31 December 2014, B E20145F12A31 A ILFE -

research and development cost include
RMB6,448,000 (2013: RMB6,852,000) relating
to staff costs, depreciation and amortisation
expenses and operating lease charges, which
amount is also included in the respective total
amounts disclosed separately above or in the
Note 4(a) for each of these types of expenses.

During the year ended 31 December 2014,
cost of inventories include RMB33,839,000
(2013: RMB27,544,000) relating to staff costs,
depreciation and amortisation expenses and
operating lease charges, which amount is also
included in the respective total amounts disclosed
separately above or in the Note 4(a) for each of
these types of expenses.

WMERABIFEEE THRA - 57
ERBERINILCERES
FAHE B 8 A R ¥6,448,0007T
(2013F : A R 6,852,000
JL) v RRARBINEIER £ XK
F4a)EEZEEIRAYS A
DR ENSEBEENA -

HZE2014512A31HLEE -
GFERABEEEIRA - 47
ERBERATMELTHEEA
6 B & A K %33,839,0007T
(20134 : A R #27,544,000
To) LA E @ BEIRET A £ Sk
T4(a)Ft S F X B8 L R
KIMEEBSEENA ©
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B BEHH -

5
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AAREIITR)
INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 5

OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss represents:

REBBRAMNAEHR

(a) HEBEBRAWBIERE

2014 2013
201445 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBEFIT
Current tax BN HA 18
Provision for PRC income tax for F AR BT EE
the year 58,507 45,652
Deferred tax IEER 18
Origination and reversal of temporary E4NGEBIEREELE
differences (5,548) 11,928
52,959 57,580

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of
the Cayman lIslands and the British Virgin
Islands (the “BVI”), the Group is not subject
to any income tax in the Cayman lIslands
and the BVI.

No provision was made for Hong Kong
Profits Tax as the Group did not earn income
subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax for the
years ended 31 December 2013 and 2014.

Taxable income for the subsidiaries of the
Company in the PRC is subject to PRC
income tax rate of 25%, unless otherwise
specified.

Consun Pharmaceutical (Inner Mongolia)
Co., Ltd. (“Inner Mongolia Consun”) and
Guangzhou Consun Pharmaceutical
Company Limited (“Guangzhou Consun”)
were qualified as an “Advanced and New
Technology Enterprise”, Inner Mongolia
Consun and Guangzhou Consun are entitled
to the preferential income tax rate of 15%
from 2012 to 2014 and 2014 to 2016,
respectively.

(i)

(if)

(iiif)

RIEFRSHS R EBE LR
E(RBRELES]) MR
AIRAB - AEBEHERF
SHREREBRZEHS BN
ERIFEH -

AR AEEREZE2013F &
2014F12A31H8 It FE I
EREUASMEBFERE
WA - I BB EFNSH
TE B -

BRIERERE  TRIART
) R B I 2 ] O PR ER B U
AR5 %M TR KA E
FTiSH

FEZX (AWEH) BRE
EFRAR(TAEHEE]) &
BMEEHEEGR AR ([E
MNEERE ) & F g3
B RERHREREME
E Al o Bl {20124 =2014
F K2014F £2016F ¥
BEAEHHE15% o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

OF PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss represents: (continued)

(iv)

According to the relevant tax law and its
implementation rules, dividends receivable
by non-PRC-resident corporate investors
from PRC-resident enterprises are subject
to withholding tax at 10%, unless reduced
by tax treaties or arrangements, for profits
earned since 1 January 2008. The Group
has adopted the 10% withholding tax rate
for PRC withholding tax purposes.

As Guangzhou Consun is wholly owned by
the Company, the Company can control
the payments of dividends by Guangzhou
Consun. According to the Group’s plan
and intention of reinvesting its earnings
in its PRC business, it will not distribute
any earnings of Guangzhou Consun and
its PRC subsidiaries generated after 1
January 2014 in the foreseeable future.
As at 31 December 2014, the Group
has undistributed earnings of the PRC
subsidiaries totaling RMB204,212,000
(2013: nil) which will not be distributed
in the foreseeable future. Accordingly, the
Company has not provided for the related
deferred tax liabilities on the undistributed
earnings of the PRC subsidiaries totalling
RMB20,421,000 as of 31 December 2014
(2013: nil).

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=AEHEHN -
REBRBRAMNMAEHR (F)

AAREIITR)

(a) HFREBBFRABBEE @ (B)

(iv)

BAE A AR E R EE A
Al - B JF 5200841 H1H
B R ER A e ) JE TR 7 1R 1) =k
ZHER - GRIFFFEER
TEFEEERKIEERD
W% B AR 10% 5 M B
e ptPBRENHEmE - A&
£ B K A10%8 78 0

BHRENEERARRIZE
FiAB » AN~ &) Al E ] E M B
ERREXR - ERAEE
BET &I R E A E 2T AR
FEIRAEKBRE A%
ERAIFER AR GIRE
R2014F1B18 & B M &
ERHEFBENBERAAIES
B & F o R2014F 12831
H AEEHEHEMEA
AR D B AR AR
204,212,0007T (20134 :
/) RAITERHRETE
TR - it - AAEI
AREFRNBRARAEHEZE
2014%F12A318 B K o B
BHFREENELERIES
B85 AR®20,421,0007T
(20134 : 4&) o
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(RBEEBAINN - AARKDR)

5 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 5

OF PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

mERBRANMAES (&)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expenses and (b) BIEMAXEZBRABRGENE
accounting profit at applicable tax rates: i N B2 8
2014 2013
2014%F 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T ARBTIT

Profit before taxation for the year FRABAER 264,159 210,462
Notional tax on profit before taxation, BEE R EER

calculated at the rates applicable FrRaFMFR=RHE

to profits in the jurisdictions B F1 AT A &Y

concerned HEHE 64,198 55,770
Effect of non-deductible expenses ANE A T E 13,688 9,724
Effect of tax concession WK E RN E (27,117) (26,275)
PRC dividend withholding tax AR BT - 18,361
Effect of unrecognised tax losses RERRBEEHZE 2,190 -
Actual tax expenses ERBIER X 52,959 57,580
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBEEBAIN - AARKIR)

6 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 6 EEME
The details of directors’ remuneration are disclosed as EEMENFIBERENOT :
follows:

Year ended 31 December 2014

BZ2014512A31ALEE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme Share-based
fees in kind bonus contribution payment (iii) Total
DYl
k=11 EAR RERY
Eshe  REVEN BEEA HE L8 R (i) st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR  ARETR  ARBTR ARWTR  AR®Tn  ARETx

Executive directors Y78

Mr. AN Yubao ZHERE 1,300 1,080 3,353 - 8,668 14,401

Ms. LI Qian Pt 1,320 974 3,353 25 8,668 14,340

Mr. ZHU Quan REEHE 435 m - - 2,645 3,851

Non-executive directors FHTES

Mr. WANG Shunlong TIEERA - - - - - -

Independent BUHTES

non-executive directors

Mr. SU Yuanfu BLRLE 120 - - - - 120

Mr. FENG Zhongshi BIExE 120 - - - - 120

Ms. CHENG Xinxin KIm& L 120 - - - - 120
3,415 2,825 6,706 25 19,981 32,952

105



CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED EEXX(EEARAT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(RBEEBAINN - AARKDR)

6 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 6 EEME (£
Year ended 31 December 2013
HE2013512A31B LEE
Salaries,

allowances Retirement ~ Share-based

Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme payment
fees in kind bonus  contribution (ii) Total

SARR AR

e 2 i RERY
ESHe  REDEA gz sHEIEE i) @t

RMB00O ~ RMBO0D  RMBOO0  RMBO00  RMBO0O  RMB'000
ARETL  ARBTL  ARETR  ARETR  ARETI  ARETR

Executive directors HTES

Mr. AN Yubao ZHEEE 108 1,080 = = - 1,188
Ms. LI Qian BETL 110 973 = 22 - 1,105
Mr. ZHU Quan REEE 36 773 - - - 809

Non-executive directors ~ #HTES

Mr. WANG Shunlong FlEExLE - - - - - -
Mr. WANG Zi Han (i) FEBRE() - 99 = = = 99
Mr. YOUNG Wai Po, Peter () BEk4() - - - - - -

Independent non-executive B kHTES

directors
Mr. SU Yuanfu (i) BTREE(>) 10 - _ _ _ 10
Mr. FENG Zhongshi (ii) BB L (i) 10 = = - - 10
Ms. CHENG Xinxin (i) BRI L (i) 10 - _ _ _ 10

284 2,925 = 22 = 3,231
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

(i)

(i)

(iiif)

Mr. WANG Zihan and Mr. YOUNG Wai Po, Peter
resigned as non-executive director on 28 March
2014 and 28 May 2014, respectively.

Mr. SU Yuanfu, Mr. FENG Zhongshi and Ms.
CHENG Xinxin were appointed as independent
non-executive directors on 2 December 2013.

These represent the estimated value of share
options granted to the directors under the
Company’s share option scheme. The value of
these share options is measured according to
the Group’s accounting policies for share-based
payment transactions as set out in note 1(0)(ii).

The details of these benefits in kind, including the
principal terms and number of options granted, are
disclosed under the paragraph “Employees’ share
award scheme” in the directors’ report and note 19.

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with highest emoluments, three
(2013: three) are directors of the Company whose

emoluments are disclosed in Note 6. The aggregate of
the emoluments in respect of the other two (2013: two)
individuals are as follows:

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(&R AEHERIN  UARBIIR)
BEEME (&)
(i) TEHFEERBERFELED IR
201443 A28 H K 201445 A28 H &F
EIEHITES -

77

BRTB LA RME SR ERKRR
Z+R2013F 12 2B EZ T AT
SN IEHMITES o

(i)

(i) FBERRBEADABERAETERT
EECBRBNGEEE  ZFE
BerEm BEERASEE ARD 5
EWRNNARXZHEBER (FHR
BEEE1(0)(ii)) = -

ZEBYRMNNFEE (BRELE
BENEZGHARBE) HEFE
wEMEB RN EZRTE] —BE
BFE198ER -

REFMAL

AARMAEBESHM AL+ B3E
(20134 : 3%) RESE + EFRKIF6
WEE o BHN2% (20134 : 28) ALH
BMABEEAA T -

2014 2013

20145 20134

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETTT

Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind e B REWEF 1,441 1,794
Contributions to retirement scheme RORETEIE IR 12 11
Employee share-based payment LARR 1D B ERR X 18 B %A 2,027 =
3,480 1,805
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(RBEEBAINN - AARKDR)

7

108

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 7 BEFMAL (&)

(continued)
The emoluments of the two (2013: two) individuals with 2% (20134 : 28) &= H BN A T A M
the highest emoluments are within the following bands: NFLATEE :
2014 2013
20145 2013%F
Number of Number
individuals  of individuals
ATEE AT EE
Nil to Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$") Z 21,000,000 7T
1,000,000 (I%xl) - 1
HK$1,000,000 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,000/8 7T
%1,500,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$2,000,000 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,000/ 7T
%£2,500,000/8 7T 1 -

RESULT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY 8 ANTERRREGES
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated result attributable to equity shareholders RAFIERRREGEGEEEEBEENA
of the Company included a profit of RMB7,758,000 (2013: R ¥7,758,0007T (20134 : EBE AR
loss of RMB12,709,000) which has been dealt with in the 12,709,0007T) * ZE &M E T AR A A
financial statements of the Company. B+ o
Reconciliation of the above amount to the Company's bl B R RN B 4F A F RO $TER
profit for the year:
2014 2013
2014% 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BTR ARETTT

Amount of consolidated result attributable SE AR BB SRR A AY

to equity shareholders dealt with in the ES AR R

Company’s financial statements REXETRE 7,758 (12,709)
Dividends from subsidiaries attributable to R EKB AR F—HKFE

the profits of the previous financial year, DR MA MRS

approved and paid during the year ERF NE RS - 69,155
Company’s profit for the year (note 21(a)) KABERNGF (Afi£21(a)) 7,758 56,446
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9 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share for
the year ended 31 December 2014 is based on
the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company of RMB211,200,000 (2013: 152,882,000)
and the weighted average number of 998,519,000
shares (2013: 758,904,000) in issue during the year.

ARE SRR B
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBEEBAIN - AARKIR)

9 BRER

(a) BREXEF

H E2014F12A31H L FE WM E
BREARBFTIBBEFARNRN TR
P& =R & 1 5 FIl A R #5211,200,000
70 (20134 : A K 152,882,000
) RFEANBBEITRO O NETE
¥  #£1998,519,000/% (20134 :
758,904,000/%) 5+ o

2014 2013
20145 2013%F
’000 shares '000 shares
TR T A%
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January M1A1HBEITE B 1,000,000 10
Effect of capitalisation issue BER(LBEITHFE
(note 21(c)) (#1:z21(c)) - 749,990
Effect of shares issued upon initial MR2013F 124198 &KX
public offering on 19 December NHRAEER
2013 BITRID M E - 8,904
Effect of purchase of shares under AR EENETEIIE T
Share Award Scheme DB E (1,481) -
998,519 758,904
Diluted earnings per share (b) BREFER

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the effect
of the Company’s share option scheme (see
note 19) was anti-dilutive. There were no dilutive
potential ordinary shares in issue for the year
ended 31 December 2013. Therefore, for the years
ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, the diluted
earnings per share of the year are the same as the
basic earnings per share.

R & E2014F128318 L F & -
NAEERERTE (REEE19) 1
YEAREENHE - B E2013F
12A31BIEFE  WEETEE
r#ErENTAR Al &
220144 K%2013F12A31H IE F
B BREFRNEGRELRZT
HEE e

109



¥

CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED REHZXEEHRA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= A -
e MR RHEE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BRSHIERIN  UARBIIR)
10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 10 ME - BMEKRRE
The Group
r5E
Motor Office  Construction
Buildings  Machinery vehicles  equipment in progress Total
Ed e RE WARME ERIR by
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETn ARBTR AR¥Tn ARETn ARETx
Cost: 773
At 1 January 2013 R2013F1 418 135,161 53,455 9,318 10,439 17,846 226,219
Transfer from CIP BERIREY 654 3,700 - = (4,354) =
Other additions HAE 214 4,383 562 1,520 67,540 74,219
Disposals RE = (2,805) (890) (1,611) - (5,306)
At 31 December 2013 12013F 124318
and 1 January 2014 R2014%1 7418 136,029 58,733 8,990 10,348 81,032 295,132
Transfer from CIP BERIREY 43,957 38,049 - - (82,006) -
Other additions EthAE 1,457 1,425 1,545 841 7,701 12,969
Disposals RE - (349) = (260) = (609)
At 31 December 2014 2014512318 181,443 97,858 10,535 10,929 6,727 307,492
Accumulated depreciation: RAE
At 1 January 2013 R2013%1A1A (22,763)  (20,407) (6,813) (4,739) - (54,722)
Charge for the year FNk (5,279) (5,201) (502) (1,332) - (12,314)
Written back on disposal REERAE - 2,474 288 1,412 - 4,174
At 31 December 2013 12013F12A318
and 1 January 2014 R2014F1 718 (28,042) (23,134) (7,027) (4,659) - (62,862)
Charge for the year FNHG (6,289) (7,050) (499) (1,392) - (15,230)
Written back on disposal REEREE = 287 - 227 - 514
At 31 December 2014 20146124318 (34331)  (29,897) (7,526) (5,824) - (77,578)
Net book value: RERE
At 31 December 2013 2013E12A31H 107,987 35,599 1,963 5,689 81,032 232,270
At 31 December 2014 20145124318 147,112 67,961 3,009 5,105 6,727 229,914

110

As at 31 December 2014 and up to the date of this report,
the Group is in the process of applying for certificates of
ownership for certain properties, with carrying value of
RMB29,534,000 (31 December 2013: RMB28,475,000).
The directors of the Company are of the opinion that
the use of and the conduct of operating activities at the
properties referred to above are not affected by the fact
that the Group has not yet obtained the relevant property

title certificates.

R2014F12A31B R EZE AR EHH -
AEBE R ®EE AR ®29534,0005T
(20134128318 : A R 28,475,000

L) METHXRFEMBEEES -

2NN

EXRR - ERLEAMERE EAMER
EREERPHAUTERAANEE HARNSERA
MEXRBEMXINZE -
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11 LEASE PREPAYMENTS

ARE SRR B
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBEEBAIN - AARKIR)

11 HERESRE

The Group
REH
2014 2013
20145 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETTT

Cost: AN :

As at the beginning of the year F1) 29,808 26,108
Addition NE - 3,700
As at the end of the year FER 29,808 29,808
Accumulated amortisation: ZETHEe -

As at the beginning of the year F17 (4,980) (4,427)
Charge for the year FAHNKR (627) (553)
As at the end of the year FR (5,607) (4,980)
Net book value: BEEEE

As at the end of the year FR 24,201 24,828

Lease prepayments represent prepayments for land use
rights paid to the PRC authorities. The leasehold lands are
located in the PRC, on which the Group’s manufacturing
plants were built. The Group was granted land used rights
for a period of 50 years initially and the remaining period
range from 35 to 45 years.

HEENRBEEEN THREKEN T E
PREENKE - HE L NTE - 2R
HIMEASEMNEERSE - AEBHRY
ERABIS0FM LI FERAE S TFEHN
T35 464 o
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(RBEEBAINN - AARKDR)

12 OTHER INVESTMENTS 12 HibigE
The Group
KEE
2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTIT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Equity securities — unlisted (i) fEARFE A — FEET() 2,600 2,600
Current assets mEEE
Financial assets at fair value through profit &2 7 EEF AIBZEE
or loss (ii) B RELVE (i) 250,900 =

112

(i)

(i)

Other investment of the Group represents an
investment in a domestic medicine manufacturer
located in Inner Mongolia autonomous region of
the PRC. The Group owns a 5% equity interest
in the domestic medicine manufacturer. There is
not a quoted market price in an active market for
the investment. Quoted prices in active market
for similar investment or observable market data
as significant inputs for valuation techniques are
also not available. Therefore, the unlisted other
investment is stated at cost less impairment, if any,
in the consolidated financial statement.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group held
investment in certain wealth management products
issued by banks in the PRC with principal amount
of RMB250,900,000. The wealth management
products will mature in January and February
2015. Based on the agreements, the minimum and
maximum return rate of the wealth management
products would be 4.0% and 4.9% per annum
respectively, which was subject to the fluctuation
of Shanghai Shenzhen CSI 300 Index during the
investment period. The principal amounts of the
wealth management products will be fully paid
back at maturity day.

(i)

(i)

AEEMEMKREREERERH
BAXETE RN —KREABEL
El - ARBEREZEANEHRLE
B 5% HE - AR ENERM
B EMIGRE - (FREERTD
EZRAZENRUREREET
BERE A BRMSEIR I EA
ES- Al FETHEMEER
MR B IS IRR P IR AR AR E
(a8) I8k -

R2014F12831H KN &£ @ £
EFEAMBTERITINS TE
MERMKRE A2BEAARKE
250,900,0007T ° % E 12 B & @ K
R2015F1H koA 2 Hi - B iR 1%
# BVEMN&ERERF(I
mED R EL0%EL49% + EER
T & BB R 30055 Z A ) F B M
TE o % EEUERNAS KR E H
HagurmE -
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e EEmRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B BHEIEREIN - UAREGIR)
13 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 13 KRB ARNKRE
The Company
A F]

2014 2013
20145 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBFIT
Unlisted shares, at cost JE LW - NAME 342,444 342,444

As at 31 December 2014, the Company had direct or
indirect interests in the following subsidiaries, all of which

R2014F12A318 » KA AR T7H B
ANa (2 AARE) BEAEEZESME

are private companies, particulars of which are set out s - FEEHIMT
below:
Place and date of Attributable
incorporation/ equity interest held
establishment Authorised and fully by the Company
Name of company FWERL paid up capital HALAREH Principal activities
INCES K%k AH EERBRRAK R AER TEEY
Direct Indirect
Ef Rtk
Brilliant Reach Group Limited BVI United States Dollars 100% - Investment holding
EEEEERAH 8 June 2010 (“US$") 50,000/US$1 RERK
ZBRAES 50,000%7 /1%
2010F6A8H
Immense Value Holdings Limited BVI 1US$50,000/US$1 100% - Investment holding
28 February 2008 50,000%7 /157 RERR
ERRLHS
2008F2A28H
Century International Develop Limited  Hong Kong HK$10,000/HK$1 - 100%  Investment holding
BB ARARA A 27 March 2012 10,0007 / 187 RERR
0
2012F3R27H
Grand Reach Company Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000/HK$1,000 - 100%  Investment holding
RHERAH 22 April 2008 10,000/7C /1,000 7T RERR
0
2008F4 7220
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(RBEEBAINN - AARKDR)

translation of the entity’s name is for reference only.

XEREHESZE -

13 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 13 RHEBARNKRE
Place and date of Attributable
incorporation/ equity interest held
establishment Authorised and fully by the Company
Name of company HRAYL/ paid up capital HARRRERN Principal activities
NREH RYGERAH AERSRRA EERAER TERHR
Direct Indirect
Ef Rk
Guangzhou Consun PRC RMB300,000,000/ - 100%  Production and sales
EMNEE" 29 December 1997 RMB300,000,000 of pharmaceutical
i AK#3,000,0007T/ products
19974124 29H AK%3,000,0007 EHER
Guangzhou Consun Medicine PRC RMB3,000,000/ = 100%  Trading of
Company Limited 1 December 2003 RMB3,000,000 pharmaceutical
ENREBEERAA i AK#3,000,0007T,/ products
2003F12A1H ARH3,000,0007C Eng5
Guangzhou Consun Pharmaceutical ~ PRC RMB10,000,000/ - 100%  Research and
Research Company Limited 28 September 2005 RMB10,000,000 development of
ENEREYTRER AR G AE#10,000,0007 / pharmaceutical
2005497 28H AK10,000,0007 products
HEEm
Inner Mongolia Consun PRC RMB25,000,000/ - 100%  Production and
REEE (ARE) ARREAA" 29 December 2005 RMB25,000,000 sales of
i AE#25,000,0007 / pharmaceutical
20058124290 AK#25,000,0007 products
EHEm
Inner Mongolia Kangyuan PRC RMB19,161,000/ = 100%  Production and
Pharmaceutical Company Limited 13 June 2000 RMB19,161,000 sales of
AEERREXERA T & AE#19,161,0007 / pharmaceutical
2000%6A13H AK%19,161,0007C products
EHEm
* The official name of the entity is in Chinese. The English * BENESABATX - BEAEMNE
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBEEBAIN - AARKIR)

INVENTORIES 14 FE
The Group
rEH
2014 2013
20145 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARETTT
Raw materials FRAF# 16,552 11,024
Work in progress bk LA 10,653 9,276
Finished goods SR Oh 26,277 28,666
53,482 48,966
The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as EERAASZIABENEESEIN
an expense and included in profit or loss is as follows: N
The Group
AEH

2014 2013
2014%F 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR ARBTTT
Cost of inventories sold BEEFEERA 159,078 118,226
Write down of inventories FEMOR - 1,305
Reversal of write-down of inventories 17 S [E) (162) =

158,916 119,531
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(AAR¥TIR)

15 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 15 EZRHEHMEKRRE
The Group The Company
rEE PN
2014 2013 2014 2013
20144 20134 20144 20134

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT AR®BTR ARETT

Trade debtors JE U BR 3K 81,929 21,179 - =
Bills receivable [N ES 154,538 208,733 - =
Less: Allowance for B REREE
doubtful debtors (4,323) (4,917) - -
Trade receivables E 5 e IE 232,144 224,995 - =
Other receivables H {th fE Y 5k IE 11,534 7,498 6,104 986
Prepayments TEfFFRIE 4,800 9,204 - -
Amounts due from AR S NGIE S
subsidiaries - - 281,003 14,071
248,478 241,697 287,107 15,057
Representing: ig 248,478 241,697 6,104 15,057
Current portion BNHAES 5 - - 281,003 =
Non-current portion JEBNEREE 2 248,478 241,697 287,107 15,057
(a) Ageing analysis (a) [FREEDAT
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing REER - BRIRR R ER R R
analysis of trade debtors and bills receivables (BEFtAE S REMERGRIE) A%
(which are included in trade and other receivables), ZRHAEEIHNBRRERERENR
based on the invoice date and net of allowance for o

doubtful debts, is as follows:

The Group
REHE
2014 2013
2014% 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BTR ARETTT

Within 3 months 3EAA 231,910 224 524
3 to 12 months 3E 121 A 233 219
Over 12 months 121E A PA_E 1 252

232,144 224,995
Trade receivables are due within 90 days from the B EWNZRIBEE X HEREE HE#E st
date of billing. 90 R A EIHA o

116



¥

ANNUAL REPORT 2014 G5 s

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

15 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(b)

Impairment of trade debtors and bills receivable

Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors and
bills receivable are recorded using an allowance
account unless the Group is satisfied that recovery
of the amount is remote, in which case the
impairment loss is written off against trade debtors

and bills receivable directly (Note 1(i)).

The movement in the allowance for doubtful
debts during the year, including both specific and
collective loss components, is as follows:

ARE SRR B
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(AAR¥TITR)

15 EZRHEHMEWFE (&)

(b) EBUERIARKERRERE

B R R R & R R AR B R (B S
BRABBERF @ BRIEAEEE®R
WA &K - ARERBR
1 B 1R 1 MR RR R K P M R 43 o i
8 (EE13)) »

FARERE (BEREERERS
1BE) MEFHMT

The Group
rEE
2014 2013
20144 2013%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%¥TR ARBTIT
At 1 January ®1A1H 4,917 8,107
Impairment loss recognised/(reversed) R (BE) BRE

518 175 (663)
Uncollectible amounts written off Tl 85 A 5 Uk 21 3R0E (769) (2,527)
At 31 December M12H31H 4,323 4,917

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s trade
debtors of RMB5,964,000 (31 December 2013:
RMB5,898,000) were individually determined to
be impaired. The individually impaired receivables
related to customers that were in financial
difficulties and management assessed that only
a portion of the receivables is expected to be
recovered. Consequently, specific allowances
for doubtful debts of RMB4,323,000 (2013:

RMB4,917,000) respectively were recognised.

R2014F 128318 » AEEH W E
U Bk 3% A R #5,964,0007T (2013
F12A310 : A R ¥5,898,000
70) EE R EERE - @52 R E
B FEGRIE S )R B9 B2 1A B 75
15 BIRE LT TERT R a2 Uk = &
DEWEIA - At - 5 RIERRE
2 BRI B R A R % 4,323,0007T
(20134 : AR¥4,917,0007T) °
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(AAR¥TIR)

15

118

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 15

(c)

Trade debtors and bills receivable that are not (c)

impaired

The ageing analysis of trade debtors and bills

receivable that are neither

individually nor

ESRHEMEBWRRIER (&)

KEBEEOREDHTOT

collectively considered to be impaired are as

ARIBAE B9 B W R AR I PR W R 4B

R A 1) S5 B B8 4R A R 1B B B M AR K

follows:
The Group
rEH
2014 2013
201445 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARETTT
Neither past due nor impaired ABEAIN A E 230,270 223,779
Less than 1 month past due BERE A AT 95 86
1 to 3 months past due wHI1=31E A 71 57
More than 3 months but less than BHAS(E A A BB R
12 months past due 1218 A 67 20
More than 12 months past due mEA12(E A A £ - 72
233 235
230,503 204,014

Receivables that were neither past due nor
impaired relate to a wide range of customers for
whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired
relate to a number of independent customers that
have a good track record with the Group. Based
on past experience, management believes that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable.

R 380 5 AR R B O FE LK K IR L A
VEERCENESREFHRA -

BE B RBERNBUKIEY K&
TEASEESRERZLENE
UEP - RBBEERLR  BEEER
RBBEZ SR DRERE
REEE XY BEREE) B AR
AR AR 2 EKE -
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(AAR¥TITR)

16 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 16 HEeERBRESEEEE
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a) HeRFESLEEEBEE:
The Group The Company
AEH RATF
2014 2013 2014 2013
20144 20134 20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR%ETrt AR¥Tr ARBTT
Cash at bank and RITRFERS
on hand 843,669 902,026 513,293 824,727
(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash (b) BiADRFEKEFESHRSWEER:
generated from operations:
2014 2013
2014% 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBT T
Profit before taxation 5 B Y ) 264,159 210,462
Adjustments for FEEGke
Depreciation e 15,230 12,314
Amortisation 5y 627 553
Provision recognised/(reversed) for ThREERER (BmE)
doubtful debts BE 175 (663)
Interest income F B W= (28,791) (4,216)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and  HEWE - BEREH
equipment EANEE 95 469
Share-base payment transactions LARR 1 A B RE B
NHR 5 47,633 =
Adjustments for LS
Increase in inventories FEEm (4,516) (26,524)
(Increase)/Decrease in trade and other &5 Rk H th el z0IE
receivables (3, m (1,779) 24,456
Increase/(Decrease) in trade and other & 5 & H {th fE 2118
payables i, Crd) 42,062 (16,497)
Increase in deferred income IR AEUS 251 2,451 7,205
Cash generated from operations BEFMBRE 337,346 207,559
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(AAR¥TIR)

17 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 17 EBEZRHEMESKE
The Group The Company
rEE AN
2014 2013 2014 2013
2014% 20134 20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTR ARBTT AR%®TR ARETT
Trade payables B 5 eI 5RIE 36,416 20,567 - =
Receipts in advance TE U R IE 3,666 3,470 - =
Accrued expenses FEEtR X 26,909 32,673 - -
Employee benefits payable [E{S{E & 1&F| 46,381 26,923 7,036 -
Other payables Hfth fE 50E 37,306 54,795 464 18,985
Amounts due to AN I PNGIE S

subsidiaries - - 2,393 2,324
150,678 138,428 9,873 21,309

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis
of trade payables, based on the invoice date, is as

follows:

l&%% K ERBZAHNE FEMNK
BRER D ATIO T -

The Group
rEH
2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETTT

Within 1 month 1@ A A 25,665 11,738
1 to 12 months 121218 A 10,512 8,652
Over 12 months 1218 A LA E 239 177

36,416 20,567
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(AAR®SIR)

DEFERRED INCOME 18  EZEWE
The Group
KEE
2014 2013
20145 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETTT
At 1 January ®1A18 10,003 2,798
Additions INE 4,000 7,929
Credited to profit or loss (Note 3(a)) s AIB2 (A7223(a)) (1,549) (724)
At 31 December W12H31H 12,454 10,003
Representing: E
Current portion BVEAEL 5 436 436
Non-current portion JEBNHEAEL 2 12,018 9,567
12,454 10,003

As at 31 December 2013 and 2014, deferred income of
the Group mainly includes various conditional government
grants for research and development projects of new or
existing pharmaceutical products and subsidies relating
to purchase of land use rights.

Deferred government grants relating to research and
development projects will be recognised as income in the
same periods in which the expenses for the development
project are incurred. Deferred government grants relating
to purchase of land use rights will be recognised as
income on a straight-line basis over the expected useful
life of the relevant land use rights.

R20134F &2014F 128318 * AEE K
BEEWmEEBEEETSEmRE Ehn
WA EEIE B M ZIE A R BUNHB) - AR
EAHE B T AR BRI maL -

ERMEZERANECRAMEEEES
FR#EBEAMAXHRE—HREZR S WD - A
EE i RENECHRTHEB K EE
FERE i AR R A EAFHANE
RORMER AU -
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ARE SRR B

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(AAR¥TIR)

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

19

122

(a)

Employees’ share option scheme

The Company has a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) which was adopted on
2 December 2013 whereby the board of directors
of the Company is authorised, at its discretion,
to grant options to the directors and employees
of the Group to subscribe for ordinary shares of
the Company. The Company can issue options
exercisable up to 100,000,000 ordinary shares
under the Share Option Scheme.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the
Company granted 60,000,000 share options to
certain directors and employees at a consideration
of HK$1 for each grantee. The exercise price of
these share options was HK$6.64 per share, and
the aggregate fair value of these share options
amounted to RMB138,095,000. The options vest
after one year to five years from the date of grant
and are then exercisable on or before 23 March
2024.

19

UREBEEI ARG HERBONRK

(a)

ESBERETE

NARA—IBR2013F 12820 K
MmE BT B ([REARRERTEI) -
BEERETE  EFAREBER
ERAEBZEERES KL I RE

RNTEBRABBRRAE - BRI
R R AR R AIEITAI(TERE
£ %100,000,0000% & i % &9 i I%
1 o

HE2014F12A31B IEFEE - &
RAABAAER ABITHRER
T & T # £ Xk & §60,000,0001%
BRE ZEERETEEATR
6.648TT  ZERRESFTAAE
#= A R #138,095,0007T ° % & i
BRERARLEBBIFESFEHE - A
A LARR 20243 B 23 H AT THE -
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19 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 19 UREZELUROGAERNNLR

(continued) (&)
(a) Employees’ share option scheme (continued) (a) EEBREE (&)
(i)  The terms and conditions of the grants are (i)  BHEZEFFIT -
as follows:
Contractual
Tranche Number of life of
Date of grant number options granted Vesting conditions options
2R BREN
R BH #e BREZE BEHE BNEH
Options granted to employees:
BT EEHNBIRIE -
28 March 2014 Tranche 1 9,100,000 1 year after the date of grant 10 years
2014537 28H E18t RHA%IF 105
28 March 2014 Tranche 2 9,100,000 2 years after the date of grant 10 years
2014F3A28H EoBt Rl Ao 10
28 March 2014 Tranche 3 10,800,000 3 years after the date of grant 10 years
2014537 28H E3%t Kt A#%3F 104
28 March 2014 Tranche 4 4,000,000 4 years after the date of grant 10 years
2014537 28H Faft Rt AfkaF 105
28 March 2014 Tranche 5 4,000,000 5 years after the date of grant 10 years
2014537 28H Foit Rt A%5F 105
Options granted to directors:
BT EENBRE
28 March 2014 Tranche 1 900,000 1 year after the date of grant 10 years
20143128 E14t RBR&RI1E 10
28 March 2014 Tranche 2 900,000 2 years after the date of grant 10 years
20143 A28H FoBt Rt AfkoF 106
28 March 2014 Tranche 3 1,200,000 3 years after the date of grant 10 years
2014537 28H 3t Rt A%3F 105
28 May 2014 Tranche 6 6,000,000 1 year after the date of grant 9.8 years
2014F5A28H Folt RLA%IF 9.8F
28 May 2014 Tranche 7 6,000,000 2 years after the date of grant 9.8 years
2014557 28H E78 Rl Ao 9.8F
28 May 2014 Tranche 8 8,000,000 3 years after the date of grant 9.8 years
2014F5R28H £8ht Kt A%3F 9.8%F

Total share options granted

RuBREAH 60,000,000
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19 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 19

(continued)
(a) Employees’ share option scheme (continued)

(ii) The number and weighted average
exercise prices of share options are as
follows:

UREEEXUROBERN T
(&)

(a) EEBRETE (&)

(i) FERBEZERINEFIETE
BT :

Year ended 31 December 2014
HZE2014F12A31HILFEE

Weighted
average Number of
exercise price options
IniEFEH B
TEE £ g
HKD ’000
BT Tz
Outstanding at the beginning of  E¥i4 k57
the year - -
Granted during the year FAREH 6.64 60,000
Forfeited during the year FREI 6.64 (400)
Outstanding at the end of the year K HARIT{E 6.64 59,600

Exercisable at the end of the year & RAITT{E

The options outstanding at 31 December
2014 had an exercise price of HKD6.64 and
a weighted-average remaining contractual
life of 9.3 years.
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19 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 19 URELEILURAGABEBONR
(continued) (&)
(a) Employees’ share option scheme (continued) (a) EEBREE (&)
(iii) Fair value of share options and (iii) BRELALERER
assumptions:
The fair value of services received in return FA DAMRER I ) B AR P2 AR
for the share options granted is measured by BRAREHREMREHE
reference to the fair value of share options RiEZARBEFE - BHHE
granted. The estimated fair value of the BRENMFTARBEDERZ
share options granted is measured based X@ERETE - BRESL
on a binomial tree model. The contractual FHELER P RER—IE
life of the share options is used as an FE o RATTEMEHE M
input into this model. Expectations of early A= XEHER o DU ARE
exercise are incorporated into the binomial RiEARBERRE
tree model. Set out below are the fair value
of share options and assumptions.
Tranche number
$5%
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Fair value at HEAALME
measurement date (Bt)
(HK$) 2.60 2.83 3.04 3.23 3.39 2.57 2.82 3.05
Share price (HK$) R (B) 5.85 5.85 5.85 5.85 5.85 6.01 6.01 6.01
Exercise price (HK$)  {7#& (Bt) 6.64 6.64 6.64 6.64 6.64 6.64 6.64 6.64
Expected volatility EHRIE 57.98% 57.98% 57.98% 57.98% 57.98% 57.97% 57.97% 57.97%
Expected option life FEHBEREFE 10years 10years 10years 10years 10years 9.8 years 9.8 years 9.8 years
106 106 105 106 106 9.8%F 9.8 9.8%F
Expected dividends BHRE = = = = = = = =
Risk-free rate 3 i ) R 2.26% 2.26% 2.26% 2.26% 2.26% 1.91% 1.91% 1.91%
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19 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 19 UBREEELURAAERBAR
(continued) (&)
(a) Employees’ share option scheme (continued) (a) EEBREE (&)

126

(iii) Fair value of share options and
assumptions: (continued)

The expected volatility is based on the
historic volatility (calculated based on the
weighted average remaining life of the
share options), adjusted for any expected
changes to future volatility based on publicly
available information. Expected dividends
are based on historical dividends. Changes
in the subjective input assumptions could
materially affect the fair value estimate.

Share options were granted under service
conditions. The conditions had not been
taken into account in the grant date fair
value measurement of the services received.

(iii) ERELAAERBER (&)

8 H R 08 DA R 2R MR A B
% (RIEBEIRENINEF Y
RexrFHE)  XRERA
A RFRERFHNEEHRK
B g 2 A FREI R T AT
B HHIRBAELKRER
HAE o FrERA T BRRAE
BAHAREZHAELE

S/ 40
R & -

BN S IR R MR -
Ik R 4 3 R 5T AP 2 AR 7 0
BEHAPNAAEAE - B
P 2 % 0 B B 7 T 355 fER

There was no market conditions associated %o
with the share option grants.
(b) Employees’ share award scheme (b) EERGEBTE

On 21 July 2014, the Board of Directors of the
Company approved the adoption of a share award
scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”) under which
shares of the Company (the “Awarded Shares”)
may be awarded to selected employees (the
“Selected Employees”) in accordance with the
provisions of the Share Award Scheme and the
nominal value of the shares awarded under the
Share Award Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company from time to
time.

The purposes of the Share Award Scheme are
to recognise the contributions by the Selected
Employees and provide them with incentives in
order to retain them for the continual operation
and development of the Group and attract suitable
personnel for the further development of the Group.

R2014F7A21H » ARFIEES
BOER M —BR M0 REF & ([AR
fn2EET81]) - BRI AR RAR (D 8%
BEEnRERTREERE ([H
EEE]) RNAFHRKRMD ([HREAR
p1) - R RENET B8 T & H AR
DEENSBARNNRTEE T
BRZAHI10% o

B B 8 E ERFTRERE
By B RAYE fE (AR - URBE RS
WHAKEZHEKERER R
BRI AEAT ESAKEE—F
R o
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EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 19
(continued)

(b)

Employees’ share award scheme (continued)

Unless terminated earlier by the Board of Directors

in accordance with the rules of the Share Award

Scheme, the Share Award Scheme will be valid

and effective for a term of 10 years commencing

on the date of adoption.

Details of the shares held under the Share Award

(AAR®ZITR)
UREGEYUROGAERNLR

(&)
(b) EERGEBE (&)

BRIFEZE F S RIER R EIM
RARF AL - i) BB EINE
BEABFRA 2 BREET REI104F -

RIB B0 BB AT 845 A WD 15

Scheme are set out below: PN
Average
purchase No. of
price  shares held Value of shares
THRRE REROHA RIEE
HK$ HK$’000 RMB’000
BT TR AR®TR
At 1 January 2014 201461 A1H - - -
Shares purchased during the year — FREE K1 5.99 9,528 57,207 45,359
At 31 December 2014 R2014F12A31H 9,528 57,207 45,359

During the year ended 31 December 2014, no
shares were awarded to Selected Employees under

the Share Award Scheme.

H E20145F12A318 L F E - #
ERBERDEBFE RS TRERER
BREG ©
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20 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 20 REMBMRRRANFEH

OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement (a) HZEFBRRRAWENEFIEE
of financial position represents:

The Group
rEH
2014 2013
201445 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETTT

At 1 January ®1A1H 11,251 9,548
Provision of PRC income tax for the year SR/ TS5 B 58,507 45,652
PRC income tax paid during the year FAB N REFTER (42,625) (43,949)
At 31 December M12H31H 27,133 11,251
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) CORIRELEHREEEREE:
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) RERE B TS AR 3R R RE R YR 7
recognised in the consolidated statement of BEE/(AR) MHEKRIED RF
financial position and the movements during the NEEINT ¢

year are as follows:
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REMBRRARANAER (&)

20 INCOMETAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 20

OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) CRIREEHEEERERE:@ (&)
(continued)
The Group
A58
Withholding
tax on future
dividend Fair value
Deferred tax assets/ income adjustment Intra group
(liabilities) arising from: from PRC Unused Provisions  from business unrealised
subsidiaries ~ tax losses and accruals  acquisition profits Total
RETENE
RETSIRANELSE AARRRE ABA BER  EHKEN SEH
BE/(8f) LRI HBES EiER  LAERE RERER st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AE®TE  ARETR  AR%TR  ARETR  AR%TR  ARETR
At 1 January 2013 R2013E1 A1 (30,203) 1,292 3,879 (2,283) 3902 (23,413)
(Charged)/credited to (1) /3t A
profit or loss (10,647) 51 (664) 12 (780) (11,928)
At 31 December 2013 R2013E12R318 &
and 1 January 2014 201451418 (40,850) 1,343 3,215 (2,17) 3,122 (35,341)
(Charged)/credited to (108)/ st A&
profit or loss - (74) 5213 128 281 5,548
At 31 December 2014 20145127318 (40,850) 1,269 8,428 (2,043) 3,403 (29,793)
* These amounts include the provision of * ZESHEBIERE20135F 12

withholding tax on future dividend income from
PRC subsidiaries amounting to RMB18,361,000
for the year ended 31 December 2013, and the
reversal of deferred tax liabilities on withholding
tax upon distribution of dividends amounting
to RMB7,714,000 during the year ended
31 December 2013. Upon the distribution of
dividends by PRC subsidiaries, the Group is
required to pay income tax.

Deferred tax assets are recognised on unused tax
losses of certain subsidiaries of the Group. They
are now progressing to their normal operation
stage and are deriving profits. Accordingly, it
is considered probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available in the future to utilize their
unused tax losses before they expire.

SIEBLFERREFEMNBE R
A B R JR A% B0 & TE AN AR
A R #18,361,0007T H # & -
AR REE2013F 128318 1E
FERREBOEMNRIED A
R #7,714,0007T &) & T % 18
BERHR - REMEBRARIKE
% REBBEMNAEH -

BIERBEETRAEEET
MERRNARDBREERMN
R - % E A B A EZ ¥ %
RELRZERBRILELS S
Mo Bt BERKRRAES
B R SR B R B A LA 1E B A1
AR ARBABEER -
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20

130

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 20

OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

()

(d)

(e)

REMBRRRANFER (&)

Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of () HREMBMRRROHIR
financial position
The Group
AEE
2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®¥TR ARETFIT
Net deferred tax asset recognised RERE B IARR RERH
in the consolidated statement BRI A EFE
of financial position 9,697 4 558
Net deferred tax liability recognised REFE AR R ERH
in the consolidated statement BN I A EFE
of financial position (39,490) (39,899)
(29,793) (35,341)
Deferred tax assets not recognised: (d) FRERNELHRBLE:
As at 31 December 2014, the Group has not R2014F128318 » AR E K
recognised deferred tax assets in respect of w8 — 2R M B 2 RS R B A BIR
unused tax losses of RMB8,758,000 (2013: nil) of M) IE ST i I A B A K 8,758,000
a subsidiary. The Group determined that it was not 7L (20134 « &) - R BREE £
probable that these tax losses can be utilised in AR KRR A LB AR FH
the foreseeable future. As of 31 December 2014, H & 1R - B E2014912A318 -
the unrecognised tax losses will expire in 2019, if AR HBEIA S 18 15 50 20194 2 B
unused. (WATEH) -
Deferred tax liabilities not recognised: (e) RERHELHRHEKR :

As at 31 December 2014, temporary differences
relating to the undistributed profits of the Group’s
PRC subsidiaries amounted to RMB204,212,000
(2013: nil). Deferred tax liabilities of RMB20,421,000
(20183: nil) have not been recognised in respect
of the withholding tax that would be payable on
the distribution of these retained profits as the
Company controls the dividend policy of its PRC
subsidiaries and the directors have determined
that the profits will not be distributed in the
foreseeable future.

R2014F12A31H - A A& B
A BT B A Bl R 2 B i ) A D B 2=
BiE A R #204,212,0007T (2013
F: &) - ARARAIZEGIEFE
MBARIMKERE  BESER®
EEAERMNRRETE HEE
F - B AR ko L it R B 5 B
JE £ ° HY TR H1 7% 785820, 421,0007T
(20134 : %) MIEERIBAE -
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21 CAPITAL, RESERVE AND DIVIDENDS 21 EX-#FERERE
Movement in components of equity (a) HZEAMBIHNES
The reconciliation between the opening and REEGE RN ESEE DR
closing balances of each component of the Group’s MR EROE RSN A RS E
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated Bk o ARAERNEEIDORE
statement of changes in equity. Details of the TIRFEROEBFHBHN T
changes in the Company’s individual components
of equity between the beginning and the end of the
year are set out below:
The Company
AN
Shares (Accumulated
held under losses)/
Share Share Other Capital Share Award  Retained
capital premium reserves reserves Scheme earnings Total
ERBEE
HEET (RiER)/
k& RHEE  HtRE  ERRE  KEORG  REEA st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETE ARETR ARETn ARETRE  ARETR
At 1 January 2013 R2013E1A1H 1 - 356,472 - - (1,295) 355,178
Shares issued upon initial READREERET
oublic offering (Note 21(c) k(A (Wiz21(c) 19563 781,267 - - - - 800850
Capitalisation issue (Note 21(c))  E#4(tEf (fitonc) 58,686 (58,686) - - - - -
Special dividends approved and  StRAEEH EMRE
paid (Note 21(b)) (Hi21b) = = = = = (51,555)  (51,555)
Total comprehensive income  ERZERELE
for the year (Note 8) (fr:28) = - = - = 56,446 56,446
At 31 December 2013 and R2013512A318
1 January 2014 20141718 78,250 722,601 356,472 - - 30% 1,160,919
Interim dividends approved R RRERIRE
and paid - (38,000) - - - - (38,000)
Equity setlled share based IREESTARR
payment transactions BEBNATRS - - - 47,633 - - 47,633
Shares purchased under ERHEEEET
the Share Award Scheme it tiollvenl = = = = (45,359) = (45,359)
Total comprehensive income  FRZENGEAE
for the year (Note 8) (Hs) - - - - = 7.758 7,758
At 31 December 2014 Ro014E12A31A 78250 684601 356472 47633 (45359) 11354 1132951
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21 CAPITAL, RESERVE AND DIVIDENDS (continued) 21 EX - FERRE (&)

(b) Dividends b) EKE
(i)  Dividends payable to equity shareholders (i) FERENE R ajfEm KRR
of the Company attributable to the year BRE
2014 2013
2014% 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETTT

Interim dividend declared and EEIREZANHHERE
paid of RMB0.038 per BREBRARE
ordinary share (2013: nil) 0.0387T (20134F : ) 38,000 -
Final dividend proposed REHEREBEEZNARS
after the end of the year BRI BRARE
of RMBO0.028 per 0.0287T (20134 : #&)
ordinary share (2013: nil) 28,000 -
66,000 -
The final dividend proposed after the end HRE B R 1B i M R B AR
of the year has not been recognised as BARRHERERFER R
liabilities at the end of the year. afE -
(i)  Dividends payable to equity shareholders (i) L—HERFEEMNEXAAE
of the Company attributable to the wBREVRE  REXHE
previous financial year, approved and paid Rt

during the year

2014 2013
20145 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR AR¥T T

Special dividends approved MBEFEIAENRE
and paid - 51,555
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21 CAPITAL, RESERVE AND DIVIDENDS (continued) 21

X RERRE (£)

(c) Share capital (c) mEX
Authorised and issued share capital FEEREZTRA
2014 2013
20145 2013%F
Number of Number of
Shares HK$’000 Shares HK$'000
R EE THET RIngE THT
Authorised i
Ordinary shares of BREBEA0E LK
HK$0.10 each LiE 5,000,000,000 500,000 5,000,000,000 500,000
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid ERITRHBENEBR
2014 2013
20145 2013F
Nominal Nominal Nominal Nominal
value of value of value of value of
Number of fully paid fully paid Number of fully paid fully paid
shares shares shares shares shares shares
RHER ARRAEE HRERAEE khgE ARMAEE HRRAEE
'000 HK$:000 RMB'000 HK$'000 RMB'000
Tk i  AR¥Tn TEn  ARETR
At 1 January R1A1H 1,000,000 100,000 78,250 10 1 1
Shares issued upon nitial RERDREERET
public offering () HRG() - - - 250,000 25,000 19563
Capitalisation issue (ii) BRILEST(i) - - - 749,990 74999 58,686
As at 31 December M2A318 1,000,000 100,000 78,250 1,000,000 100,000 78,250
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21 CAPITAL, RESERVE AND DIVIDENDS (continued) 21 BX - #ERRE (&
BA (&)

ERTRBEZHEER (&)

(c) Share capital (continued) (c)

Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid (continued)

134

(i)

(i)

(iiif)

On 19 December 2013, the shares of the
Company were listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited following the completion of its
initial public offering. 250,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.1 each were issued at
a price of HK$4.36 per share under the
initial public offering of the Company.
Proceeds of HK$25,000,000 (approximately
RMB19,563,000) representing the par value
of these ordinary shares, were credited
to the Company’s share capital and the
excess of the proceeds over the nominal
value of the total number of ordinary shares
issued after offsetting share issuance
costs of HK$66,548,000 (approximately
RMB52,075,000), were credited to the share
premium account of the Company.

Pursuant to written resolution of the
Company’s shareholders, the Company
capitalises an amount of HK$74,999,000
(approximately RMB58,686,000) standing
to the credit of the share premium account
of the Company by applying such sum
in paying up in full at par of 749,990,000
shares, each of which were allotted and
issued to the then shareholder of the
Company on 2 December 2013.

At 31 December 2014, 9,528,000 ordinary
shares were held by the Company under the
Share Award Scheme (31 December 2013:
Nil) (see Note 19(b)).

(i)

(if)

(iiif)

M2013F12819H ° K
NRAIMBRO R E XA ARE
ETKEERBBERS
FrBER AR ER Eme
250,000,0008% & X E H0.1
BTHNEBEARBERAGE
RAFREERERA6E T
B {8 1% 3 77 - 25,000,000
BITHERE (DARK
19,563,0007T + BD #% & &
BROEE) TALRRRR
AN AT SRIB A IR AR 1D
% 17 BX 766,548,000 JT
(#) A R ®52,075,0007T)
BEBLHEETTRREHRE
BRI FARR BB RRH
S (BAR o

BEARRRENEZE R
FEARABARF R
7 % 8 Bk $74,999,0007%
7L (89 A R ¥58,686,000
TL) MERBRER - FE
R ZEFRTEARNIEE B
£749,990,0000% f% 15 © &
I 5 ¥ R2013F 12 2B B2
BRBETTARAE R
% °

R2014F12831H + &KX A
AIREBERG REFEFE
9,528,000/% & i@ % (2013
F12A31H « &) (R it 5
19(b)) °
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(d)
()

(ii)

(iii)

ANNUAL REPORT 2014 G5 s
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Nature and purpose of reserves

Share premium

The share premium represents the difference
between the par value of the shares of the
Company and proceeds received from the
issuance of the shares of the Company.

Under (Revised)
of the Cayman lIslands, the funds in the
share premium account of the Company
are distributable to the shareholders of
the Company provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is
proposed to be distributed, the Company
will be in a position to pay off its debts

the Companies Law

as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial information of
operations with functional currency other
than RMB.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the portion
of the grant date fair value of unexercised
share options granted to employees of
the Company that has been recognised
in accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for share-based payments in Note

1(0)(ii).

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(d)
()

(i)

(iii)

(AAR®SIR)

B4 RERRE (&
RENMHEERARZR

B EE

B s (B e AN R B A BR
BERBITARABRMDHME
IR ZEHZRR -

RIEFEFEAFE (BiE
71D ARA R & E RS
ME A DI T ARBR
R HEEEEZEDIREER
g NRRRABRENER
HRAERBEBETEDH
METS -

EL#E

EXFREEEREUARE
PASMNEO T e 5 6 51 (B A S 75
B 1 7% B R P EE R R P A A1
PEZRE -

BA#E

B AN R R IR M R 1 (o) (i)
LA B0 A B R B SRATER
MZERE - TARERD
BT ARREEMERER
TEBINELBERZAR
@ -
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21 CAPITAL, RESERVE AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
(iv)  Other reserves

The other reserves of the Group represent
the difference between (a) the nominal value
of share capital of Guangzhou Consun; and
(b) the nominal value of the shares issued
by the Company in exchange under the
reorganisation of the Group completed on
24 December 2012.

The other reserves of the Company
represent the difference between (a) the
consolidated net assets of the subsidiaries
acquired; and (b) the nominal value of the
shares issued by the Company in exchange
under the reorganisation of the Group
completed on 24 December 2012.

(v) PRC statutory reserves

Pursuant to the articles of association
of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries now
comprising the Group, appropriations to
the PRC statutory reserves were made
at a certain percentage of profit after
taxation determined in accordance with the
accounting rules and regulations of the PRC,
until the PRC statutory reserves was equal
to 50% of the entity’s registered capital.
The percentage for this appropriation was
decided by the directors of the respective
subsidiaries. This reserve fund can be
utilised in setting off accumulated losses or
increasing capital of the subsidiaries and is
non-distributable other than in liquidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(v)

PRC statutory reserves (continued)

During 2014, Guangzhou Consun transferred
10% of their net profit of RMB1,732,000
to the PRC statutory reserves. The PRC
statutory reserves balances of Inner
Mongolia Consun had reached 50% of
their registered capital, and no further
appropriation was made for the year ended
31 December 2014. Other PRC subsidiaries
of the Group had made losses during
the 2014 or had accumulated losses, no

appropriation was made accordingly.

Distributability of reserves

The aggregate amount of distributable reserves
December 2014
December 2013:

of the Company as at 31
was RMB1,052,427,000 (31
RMB1,082,669,000).

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can
continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products
and services commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable
cost.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the
basis of an adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio.
For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as
total debt (which includes interest-bearing loans
and borrowings) less cash and cash equivalents.
Adjusted capital comprises all components of
equity. The Group did not have adjusted net debt
during the year.
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CAPITAL, RESERVE AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

21

22

138

(f)

Capital management (continued)

During the year, the Group’s strategy was
to maintain the debt-to-equity ratio at a level
considered reasonable by the Group’s management
from time to time with reference to the prevailing
market conditions. In order to maintain or adjust
the ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to equity shareholders, issue new

shares or raise new debt financing.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES

Exposure to credit and liquidity risks arises in the normal

course of the Group’s business. The Group’s exposure to

these risks and the financial risk management policies
and practices used by the Group to manage these risks
are described below.

(a)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade and other receivables. Management has a
credit policy in place and the exposures to these
credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of
making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. Trade
receivables are due within 90 days from the date
of billing. Debtors with balances that are more
than 12 months past due are requested to settle
all outstanding balances before any further credit
is granted. Normally, the Group does not obtain
collateral from customers.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 22

VALUES (continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer rather than the industry or country
in which the customers operate and therefore
significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure to
individual customers. As at 31 December 2013 and
2014, 39% and 29% of the total trade receivables
were due from the Group’s largest customer and
44% and 43% of the total trade receivables were
due from the five largest customers respectively.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from trade
and other receivables are set out in Note 15.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s approach in managing liquidity is
to ensure, as far as possible, that the Group
maintains sufficient reserves of liquid funds to meet
its liabilities when they fall due, under both normal
and stressed conditions.
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22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 22

VALUES (continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

The following are the contractual maturities of
financial liabilities (exclude receipts in advance),
which are based on contractual undiscounted cash
flows (including interest payments computed at
contracted rates) and the earliest date the Group
can be required to repay:

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

MBERREERARE (B)

(b)

RBESRAR (&)

TXRAEEzRAE (TEHER
WHKIR) MAKEIHIER - T E
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LT3

ym= £h

& K

At 31 December 2014

MWRFEH:

R2014F12A31H
BHNAARRE RN
More than
Within 1 1 year but
year or on less than Carrying
demand 5 years Total amount
15/ BB1E
REX BAHR5E #st REE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBT R ARBT R ARBTR
Trade and other payables B S REMENTR 147,012 - 147,012 147,012
At 31 December 2013
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
#2013%12A31H
BRRTRRERA
More than
Within 1 1 year but
year or on less than Carrying
demand 5 years Total amount
1ERY HB1F
REX EAES st REE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEETT AEEFT AEEFT AREFT
Trade and other payables ZoREMEMNTIE 134,958 = 134,958 134,958
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VALUES (continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Fair values

The carrying amounts of all financial assets and
liabilities carried at amortised cost approximate
their respective fair values as at 31 December
2013 and 2014 due to the short maturities of these
instruments.

Interest rate risk

The Group does not have significant exposure to
interest rate risk as it does not expect interest rate
fluctuation would have any significant impact on
the fair value or cash flows of its cash and bank
deposits held as at 31 December 2014.

Currency risk

As the Group’s principal activities are carried out
in the PRC, the Group’s transactions are mainly
denominated in Renminbi, which is not freely
convertible into foreign currencies. All foreign
exchange transactions involving Renminbi must
take place through the People’s Bank of China or
other institutions authorised to buy and sell foreign
exchange. The exchange rates adopted for the
foreign exchange transactions are the rates of
exchange quoted by the People’s Bank of China
that are determined largely by supply and demand.

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
give rise to cash balances that are denominated
in a foreign currency, i.e. a currency other than the
functional currency of the operations to which the
transactions relate. The currencies giving rise to
this risk are primarily Hong Kong dollars.
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22  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 22 H¥EBREERAAE (£)
VALUES (continued)
(e) Currency risk (continued) (e) INEREBR (&)
Exposure to currency risk ET# 19 5 E 7 B
The following table details the Group’s and the TR ANEB RAR RN HEH
Company’s exposure at the end of reporting period BERFAAZHINERR - ZF
to currency risk arising from recognised assets or HNEE @B T R & LAME R B B8 2 T B
liabilities denominated in a currency other than BRI EEIENE BREE
the functional currency of the entity to which they SBEMEE - RPBE2WmE - &
relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts of PR ERE A ARSI - WAGF#
the exposure are shown in RMB translated using HEBNHARE R0 - AR INEL 2
the spot rate at the period end date. Differences B BMERERAEEEZRE
resulting from the translation of the financial BmEEHNZECLIHR -
statements of foreign operations into the Group’s
presentation currency are excluded.
The Group and the Company AEERERQT
Exposure to foreign currencies
HNEE BB
(expressed in Renminbi)
(AARMESIR)
2014 2013
20144 20134
Hong Kong Hong Kong
Dollars Dollars
BT HIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARBTT
Cash and cash equivalents BENMRESEEER 6,982 24,727

142

The Group had no significant foreign exchange
exposure as at 31 December 2014, as the
cash and cash equivalents held by the Group
denominated in the currency other than Renminbi
was insignificant.
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23 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 23 EAXREIE
Capital commitments outstanding as at 31 December R2014F12A31 AR bR & BT 5 s = R B
2014 not provided for in the consolidated financial B RBITEREAERAT :

statements were as follows:

2014 2013

2014% 20134

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%¥TR AR¥ETTT

Contracted for BET4 1,809 5,083

Authorised but not contracted for EHEERETA 7,242 -

Total F 9,051 5,983
24  MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 24 EXBHBRIRS
Key management personnel remuneration TEEEAE#ME

Remuneration for key management personnel of the AEEFZEERAENME  BRAERA

Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s directors AIEEXHFRIE (PRHE61KREE) A KM

as disclosed in Note 6 and certain of the highest paid ETESFHEEXNHKIE (KM FH7H

employees as disclosed in Note 7, is as follows: =) HIWT -

2014 2013

20144 20134

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETTT

Salaries and other benefits e MEMEF 17,776 6,754

Retirement scheme of defined contribution — RE 2GR K2 100 62
Equity settled share-based payment LARRHE 4 B 30 LARR 19

expenses RERHNRFEL 24,124 -

42,000 6,816

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see Note Bt A B TaA ] R (REtiE4(a)) °

4(a)).
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25

144

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The key sources of estimation uncertainty and critical
accounting judgements in applying the Group’s
accounting policies are described below.

(a) Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives,
after taking into account the estimated residual
value.

The Group reviews annually the useful life of an
asset and its residual value, if any. The depreciation
expense for future years is adjusted if there are
significant changes from previous estimation.
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(b) Impairments

(i)

(i)

In considering the impairment losses that
may be required for certain property, plant
and equipment and lease prepayments,
recoverable amount of these assets needs
to be determined. The recoverable amount
is the greater of the net selling price and
the value in use. It is difficult to precisely
estimate selling price because quoted
market prices for these assets may not be
readily available. In determining the value
in use, expected cash flows generated by
the asset are discounted to their present
value, which requires significant judgment
relating to items such as level of turnover
and amount of operating costs. The Group
uses all readily available information in
determining an amount that is reasonable
approximation of recoverable amount,
including estimates based on reasonable
and supportable assumptions and
projections of items such as turnover and
operating costs.

Impairment losses for doubtful debts
are assessed and provided based on
the directors’ regular review of ageing
analysis and evaluation of collectability. A
considerable level of judgment is exercised
by the directors when assessing the credit
worthiness and past collection history of

each individual customer.

An increase or decrease in the above
impairment losses would affect the net profit
or loss in future years.
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26 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 26 HZ2014F12831A L FECEMHE

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED W ARERNIEE » HERRZRENE
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED ¥

31 DECEMBER 2014

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, BENEZSYHEHREOY - BAGE
the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, new RECRMREE2014F12A318 L F
standards and interpretations which are not yet effective BRAREREAREZEMHRERANES
for the year ended 31 December 2014 and which have HIER] - BRI R BRE - ZFEF - £R
not been adopted in these financial statements. There ERBERRAREASEARN T
include the following which may be relevant to the Group. I8 °

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RT3 B #sk L&
RN E T BB EXR
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle 1 July 2014
EIBR & 2ERI2010F Z2012F B 5 2 F 8 BUEE 201456 7R1H
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle 1 July 2014
EIBR & 2ERI2011F Z2013F B 5 2 F 8 BUE 201457/ 1H
Amendments to HKFRS 11, Accounting for acquisitions of interests 1 January 2016
in joint operations
EEMBRELRNENIRIER N - UWESE L Al#ED T Bl EHE 20165F1A1H
Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38, Clarification of 1 January 2016
acceptable methods of depreciation and amortisation
BEANBRELBNFE1RETRARE BT EREIBREFT A - 2016F1A1H
TERBIHAEX L2 EE
HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers 1 January 2017
ERUBRELERNEL - KEHEEFET L2 EKIBIKA 201751 A1H
HKFRS 9, Financial instruments 1 January 2018
EEMBRELERNESE 2@ TA 20181 A1H
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2014 (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments, is expected to be
in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded
that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant
impact of the Group’s results of operations and financial
position.

In addition, the requirements of Part 9, “Accounts and
Audit”, of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622) come into operation from the Company’s first
financial year commencing after 3 March 2014 (i.e. the
Company’s financial year which will begin on 1 January
2015) in accordance with section 358 of that Ordinance.
The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of the expected impact of the changes in the new Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance on the consolidated financial
statements in the period of initial application of Part 9.
So far it has concluded that the impact is unlikely to be
significant and will primarily only affect the presentation
and disclosure of information in the consolidated financial
statements.

NON-ADJUSTING
REPORTING PERIOD

EVENTS AFTER THE

After the end of the reporting period the directors
proposed a final dividend. Further details are disclosed
in Note 21(b).
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Five-Year Financial Summary

RITAFHBRE

The Company was incorporated on 13 December 2010 and
became the holding company of the subsidiaries through a
reorganization in preparation of the listing of the Company’s
shares on the main board of the Stock Exchange on 24 December
2012. The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
years ended 31 December 2010 to 2012 have been prepared

AN A M AL 7A2010F 128138 » 72012
FI2H24BBBEAKNASZTWERAGNIZERA
A LEBARRAFRMDERAZFAER LT - A&
B & =2010F £2012F 128318 I & F E W 4R
AU BREROENHOANEERFTESFESHE
SEQRSEMEMASKZBHE—FT

as if the Group had been in existence throughout the years 7 °
presented, or since the respective dates of incorporation or
establishment of the group companies.
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
20144 20134 20124 201148 20104
RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’'000
ARSTR ARETE ARBTIT ARETT ARETT
Turnover e 730,683 571,765 457,801 389,305 303,713
Gross Profit EF 571,767 452 234 346,689 293,798 239,985
Profit before taxation A Al 264,159 210,462 179,062 145,407 103,329
Income tax Fri5 %t 52,959 57,580 42,856 38,106 24,071
Profit for the year F N F 211,200 152,882 136,206 107,301 79,258
Basic and diluted earnings  SFRYE K # s
per share (expressed AR (LAZRR N/A N/A
in RMB Yuan per share) AREBTIITR) 0.21 0.20 0.18 3 F T3
Assets and liabilities EENEE
Non-current assets EmENE E 266,412 264,256 200,949 181,070 160,516
Current assets MENE E 1,396,529 1,192,689 445,058 315,951 271,697
Current liabilities mEta s 178,247 150,115 260,347 235,299 174,401
Non-current liabilities FmBAE 51,508 49,466 30,482 15,702 10,129
Net assets BEFE 1,433,186 1,257,364 355,178 246,020 247,683
Capital and reserves BARREE
Share Capital [N 78,250 78,250 1 80,770 80,770
Reserves w1 1,354,936 1,179,114 355,177 165,250 166,913
Total equity B 1,433,186 1,257,364 355,178 246,020 247,683

The summary above does not form part of the audited

consolidated financial statements.
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